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GROUP PROFILE

About Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries (“Group”) are one of the world’s largest circular knitted fabric
manufacturers, providing vertically integrated operations in fabric knitting, dyeing, printing and finishing. In addition
to its core business of manufacturing and sale of knitted fabric which generates majority of the total revenue, the
Group’s product range also includes garments. As a major knitted fabric supplier to garment manufacturers in over
40 countries that supply apparel products including sportswear, casual wear, sleep wear and inner wear to many
internationally renowned retailers and brands, Fountain Set's worldwide sales reached HK$6.65 billion (US$858

million) in the financial year 2015.

Headquartered in Hong Kong and listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Fountain Set (Holdings)
Limited (SEHK: 420) has production facilities in the PRC, Sri Lanka and Indonesia, with marketing and representative
offices in 4 countries and a global staff force of approximately 12,100.

Since June 2012, Chinatex Corporation has become the largest shareholder of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited.
Chinatex Corporation is under direct administration of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council of the PRC and is one of the 500 largest enterprises in the PRC.

To learn more about Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited, please visit www.fshl.com

To learn more about Chinatex Corporation, please visit www.chinatex.com
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRGETHE

2015 2014
20154 201445
HKSMil 5547 HK$MIl 5728 7T
Operating Results EEEE
Revenue HEE 6,653.1 6,891.1
Financial Performance g E35)
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AAREBNEGEBF 99.9 90.6
Profit margin BFx 1.5% 1.3%
Earnings per share (HK cents) FREF (EWL)
- Basic —EXK 8.3 75
- Diluted -BE 83 75
Dividends KE
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (EBEBRNZRBRSER)
Per share (HK cents) ik (&) 4.0 4.0
Dividend payout ratio KB E 48.2% 53.3%
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
M2015%12A31H M2014F12H31H
HK$Mil B B & T HKS$MIl B 2% T
Financial Position at Year End REERERZ2HBMRR
Net current assets RYEEFE 1,913.0 1,8186
Total assets AERE 5,430.6 5,565.7
Non-current bank borrowings EREBBITEE 159.2 213.7
Total bank borrowings BRTIEE 653.8 999.9
Net bank borrowings FITEEFE (223.4) 42.4
Total liabilities BEAE 2,035.8 2,240.1
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFE(BT) 2.68 2.65
Capital expenditure BARY 118.3 129.2
Financial Statistics MR E
Return on equity (%) BEEHE(BML) 3.8% 2.9%
Consolidated tangible net worth RAFENEE 3,019.3 29775
Consolidated total bank debt to consolidated tangible A @FITE EHEE FEF EELLFI
net worth 0.2 03
Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated e SR EREHANEHESNE
interest expense X B 13.4 104
Consolidated current assets to consolidated BAENDEEHGARYBELH
current liabilities 2.1 19
Inventory turnover period (days) FEREH(R) 88 77
Trade and bills receivables turnover period (days) EERERENGEAES(B) 72 73
Trade and bills payables turnover period (days) EERRBEMGTERESR(R) 53 47
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Note: In August 2012, the Company changed its financial year end date from 31 August to 31 December. Hence the figures for
the period ended 31 December 2012 cover the 16 months period from 1 September 2011 to 31 December 2012.
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Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBHE

A summary of the financial information of the Group for the last five financial
year, as extracted from the respective published audited consolidated

financial statements, is set out as below. This summary does not form part of

the audited consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2015

BHEBE A hEER

AEEBELEMBRFREZMBERBEE (R
AR BWE)BINT - 1t
BEY TR EZEAMBRR 2 — 80 -

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS mEBRZR
For the For the For the For the For the
year ended 16 months ended year ended year ended year ended
31 August 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
EEYIINES BE012F BHE2013F BE20145 220155
8A3IHILFE  12A31ALL16(EA 12A31B1LEE 12A31B1LEE 12A31RILEE
HK$000 F# T HK$000 /8T HK$000 /8T HK$000 F/8 T
Revenue BEE 7,593,889 9,167,089 6,942,807 6,891,133 6,653,051
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRART,/ (B8) 343191 (333457) 86,398 123829 152,207
Income tax FriEH (103,473) (4,304) 14,290 (28,068) (24,133)
Profit/(loss) for the year/period =EE/SREH/ (BE) 239,718 (337,761) 100,688 95,761 128,074
Attributable to: JEf :
Owners of the Company KRREEA 210,886 (324,167) 91,304 90,590 99,860
Non-controlling interests FERER 28,832 (13,594) 9,384 5171 28,214
239,718 (337,761) 100,688 95,761 128,074
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B HE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #ZR&E M BERRE

At At At At At

31 August 2011 31 December 2012 31 December 2013 31 December 2014  ERIMVALIL @I E]
W2011E8A31H  M2012612A318  M2013512A318  R2014512A318  RAUEE3vEKIE=!
HK$000 FT HK$000 FT HK$000 F2 T HK$000 T HK$'000 F/&7

(Note) ()

Non-current assets FRBAE 2,300,207 2,023,461 1,867,767 1,789,197 1,707,950
Current assets TEEE 4,308,695 3,996,634 4,264,878 3,776,536 3,722,604
Current liabilities TBARE 2,699,104 2,532,214 2,271,639 1,957,936 1,809,609
Net current assets ROEEFE 1,609,591 1,464,420 1,993,239 1,818,600 1,912,995
Total assets less current liabilities EEBERRYEE 3,909,798 3,487,881 3,861,006 3,607,797 3,620,945
Non-current liabilities ERBAaE 871,572 308,101 b82,359 282,174 226,189
Net assets EEFE 3,038,226 3,179,780 3,278,647 3,325,623 3,394,756
Capital and reserves EARGE

Share capital B 158,802 240,609 240,609 862,211 865,716

Reserves G 2,679,204 2,769,113 2,876,611 2,320,317 2,364,829
Equity attributable to owners RRAEE AEGREE

of the Company 2,838,026 3,009,722 3,117,220 3,182,528 3,230,545
Non-controlling interests FERGER 200,200 170,058 161,427 143,095 164,211
Total equity EneE 3,038,226 3,179,780 3,278,647 3,325,623 3,394,756

Note: Certain reserves were transferred to share capital according to the requirement under 7 ERMDREERIER2014F3A3H MM EE22EF AR
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 with effective from 3 March 2014. ARG 2 BSREERA - HIEH ARG BRERNT
Details of which is set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. 3004 ©
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS
RERAE

Name of Award/Certification Issued by

RIERBER BHEN

Ao RE

Name of Award/Certification Issued by
RE/RBEER BHEMN

English names are only translation of their official Chinese names. In case of inconsistencies, the Chinese name shall prevail.
ENEHERE TP XEGEEX - WEBRE MUAPXERAE-

Chinese names are only translation of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English name shall prevail.

FXERBEABETAXAWZE WERE HUARAXAERE-
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS
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Name of Award/Certification Issued by
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QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
financial year of 2015, and to provide you the overview of the Group’s

strategy and business outlook.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

Since its establishment in 1969, the Fountain Set Group has encountered
tests and challenges in different epochs at different stages, gaining precious
experience which provided a solid foundation upon which the Group have

grown up and prospered.

The macro environment was challenging and full of uncertainties last year,
especially in the second half of the year. Global growth in 2015 dropped to
2.4 percent, and is expected to recover at a slower pace than previously
envisioned according to the World Bank's January 2016 Global Economic
Prospects. The drop in oil prices has put the United States, our key export
market, in a leading position in terms of the pace of economic growth.
Nevertheless, China, our domestic market, and some emerging markets,
experienced slackened economic growths which rely upon international
export trade. The depreciation of most emerging countries currencies
is causing international capital to flow from emerging markets back to
the United States, elevating financial risks in some regions. The political
instability spreading from the Middle-East to Europe, the pace of the US
interest ratehike cycle, the fall in global commodities prices, and the
slowdown in China economy have all clouded the economic environment
in 2015, we continued investing in our business with the goal of building a
long-term sustainable business that will weather any change in the global
operating environment. Meanwhile, the unexpected further depreciation of
Renminbi (“RMB”) during 2015 created some easing in the cost as most
of production facilities are located in China. In addition, the historical low in
oil prices and other commodities prices also removed certain level of stress
in our production costs. The cotton price which relatively largely reduced in
the first half of 2015 resulted in a wait-and-see purchasing approach among
our end-buyers; however, a more stabilized cotton price in the second half
of the year resulted in a greater demand for our products. The rise of the
e-commerce has created some stirs in the retail industry. Nevertheless,
we will continue our efforts to sharpen our competitiveness to meet the

challenges ahead.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”")
PERFORMANCE

We are committed to good ESG practices, as they help us fulfill our
obligations to our stakeholders and the communities. Sound and
effective risk management measures are implemented to ensure that our
business is conducted responsibly and remains sustainable. We believe
that environmental protection would provide sustainable growth and
development to our business. The Awards and Certificates listed out from
pages 8 to 13 of this annual report have shown our efforts in the ESG arena.
As a responsible corporate citizen, we continue our wide range of Corporate
Social Responsibilities (“CSR”)-related initiatives to support the communities

where the Group operates.

Following the update of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
in February 2016 to oversee the Group’s overall risk management and
internal control systems, the Audit Committee will review and discuss the
risk management and internal control systems with management to ensure
that the management has performed its duty to have effective systems, as
well as to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative
and proceed research according to the management’s response to these

findings.

The Group has adopted a number of environmental protection and pollution
control measures throughout its production process. For the purpose of
business operations, each fabric and garment production plant reports
to relevant local environmental protection administrative authorities for
environmental impact evaluation procedures for their inspection, and all
of the Group’s production facilities in China and overseas have obtained
and maintained all of the relevant licences and approvals required under
environmental protection laws and regulations of China and relevant
countries for conducting their businesses. The Group has been requesting
all business and production units to be in strict compliance with relevant

laws and regulations in the countries that we operate.

The Group’s production facilities have made and will continue to make
investments in adopting advanced technologies and installing additional
equipment to prevent and reduce pollution. The Group provides periodic
training to the staff regarding environmental protection and pollution
controls. The Group also invites qualified advisors to visit its factories from
time to time to evaluate whether the environmental protection measures are

up to standard as well as to give recommendations for further improvement.
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LOOKING FORWARD

In the year ahead, the global economy is likely to face a number of
challenges, including worries over a slowdown in major economies, possible
further US interest rate hikes, subdued oil prices and volatilities in the
financial markets. However, anticipated additional stimuli from China,
Eurozone and Japan will underpin the global economy. The China economy
will continue to grow albeit at a slower pace in the year ahead as more

reform and stimulus measures gradually unfold.

We expect 2016 is going to be another challenging year with the growth
of the Chinese economy expected to continue to slow down. However, we
see this as an opportunity as the growth becomes more driven by domestic
consumption rather than export-driven. Our ability to improve control from
raw materials sourcing to finished textiles products, reduce overall cost and
speed up time-to-market will continue to make us the partner of choice

going forward.

We believe that all of our staff will work hard to follow the Board's direction
and objectives, stick together with one heart and to fully implement the
working plan set by the Board, and to further map out our long term
development strategy. With our spirit of “diligence, frugality, sincerity and
integrity” and our general direction of “to stabilize operation and to enhance
development”, we shall keep on enhancing our efficiency and exploring the
market with persistent efforts for bringing Fountain Set Group to a new level.
We look forward to completing our annual operating tasks and targets with
excellent performances, and creating brilliant returns and results for our

shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| am grateful for the good guidance and counsel from my fellow
Board members. We appreciate very much the ongoing support of our
Shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and other partners. My great
gratitude to the staff of the Company as they work tirelessly to ensure the

Group remains one of the top circular knitted fabric suppliers in the world.

ZHAO Yao

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

18 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

In 2015, the global economy, particularly in the second half year,
continued to be volatile and unstable. The US economy was expanding at a
moderate pace. The unemployment rate dropped to the lowest level since
the 2008 financial crisis. However, US customers were still concerning
about uncertainty on the economic front following the withdrawal of the
quantitative easing policy and the rise in interest rates which provided
some positive sentiments to the world economy. While in the Euro zone, the
economy as a whole was moderate. The sovereign debt crisis and influx
of refugees will continue to affect financial markets as Europe faces long
term predicaments in its economic development. China’s economic growth
will continue to decelerate as annual gross domestic product (GDP) last
year grew by only 6.9%, which were the weakest growth since 1990 and
the first time in 25 years that it has fallen below 7%. The further slowing
down of Mainland China’s macroeconomic growth intensified competition.
In addition, further depreciation on Renminbi currency led to downward
declines in the domestic demand and economy. Despite the uncertain
global economy, decline in overall demand and other risks such as deflation,
Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited continued to uphold its prudent and
pragmatic approach to deal with the ever-changing market conditions and
prepare for the challenges. The Group maintained steady growth in the net
profit and other financial performance despite the sales reduced by 3.5%
during this financial year, mainly attributable to its focus on operation and
management improvements including continuous business development on
quality customers, consolidate customer groups, cost reduction and control

initiatives to boost operating profitability.

During the year under review, the Group’s fabric production volume
remained flat compared with that of last year, however, cotton price
continued to drop, thus the average selling price of the fabric reduced. As
a result, the Group’s revenue decreased by 3.5% to HK$6,653.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$6,891.1 million).

Nevertheless our revenue was slightly lower than that of previous year,
the Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
noticeably improved to HK$807.6 million (2014: HK$714.8 million). Factors
contributed to an improved profit margin included historical low energy
prices in last year, low and stable raw material prices, tight management on
the raw material procurement and better control in the production costs.

Gross profit margin increased correspondingly to 12.1% (10.4% in 2014).

XBOE

L it

2015 EER THFHE2REERISED R
PIZ ERLEFRBE ORI AP IER - REERER
B 20084 < fb /& LA SR #) AR K T« 3 1+ 2
ERPHRHNEB(CERBELINEH 2 IREHETRK
ETIEEZERENLEFEN AR DERT
FEE - BTk B RABRRMIZG K - EREUM
EREHNCERSE  TREKEKRER M
EREVESRMS PELEEERISERR:
FFENEELBERIERG69% BT 819904 A
R FEIGRIEE - thR25F AR E RBKIET% ©
o B P 7R R A B R — 2P R N R o 1t
S ARBE—SPRESBEAANBTRREERZT
T -BERIEBETH BERREL A
RRESHMER BHEE (SE)BRARE
BRABEFSERA REHBSEBEZOTSIER
ERKBEITEE RE BRI REE S
BB A3.5% BLER R E A BRI AT
BER SXZaRNEEELENERE HEDE
HItER BREEEETHERELRRE BATP
BECRBERA EHIBRASE—RIERE BURA

Bl

BEFA SENMHESHEXFRT A
RICERFHETR AN FIHEERK B
b EEREHE2015F12A31A L FEME %
%88 13.5% = #96,653,100,00078 7T (20144F : 4
6,891,100,000% 7T ) °

BELEERER F—FEF SEHZE2015F12
H31H IF4F [E 8 3 | 2 3 12 = £9807,600,000/%
7T (20144 : #9714,800,000/8 7T ) » #8) B F%K |
FHEE R B IE A F A RE RN £ AR - JRA
EBRECET WEHERNKENEE REFi
PEHIEERAR - EFEAEEE12.1% (20144 -
10.4% ) °

17



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2015

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

1
e
8]
‘I:_JI‘I:
a5
B
o
=k

Total Production Management

During the first half of 2015, Total Production Management (“TPM")
was launched in the fabric production facilities with the aims to enhance
production efficiency as well as to reduce operational costs through increase
in the maintenance awareness on the production equipment among all
production staff and to encourage staff to initiate operational improvement.
As a result, staff moral and positive momentums have been advocated in
all production facilities and meaningful costs saving efforts were generated
in the second half of the financial year. At the same time, the Group has
successfully kicked off a series of production training to all production staff
in the fabric mills, to refresh and reinforce staff with updated knowledge on
production operation, technical craftsmanship as well as management skills.

Enormous positive feedbacks have been received from the staff.

Production Facilities Replacement

During the year under review, the Group has replaced numerous relatively
less updated and less efficient production facilities in our fabric mills
including fabric dyeing machines, fabric finishing machines and fabric
printing machines with new and latest models which provide better
production efficiency, less wastage and higher energy saving. The Group has
also set up a tender committee for standardizing the tender management
policy and procedure for purchasing new production machines to ensure the

process provides the best interest to the Company as well as our suppliers.

Customers

The Group is a knitted fabric manufacturer with products mainly marketed
in the U.S., Europe and China, which are supplied to end-buyer customers
primarily consisting of renowned international brands and retailers. Last
year, the Group has successfully started collaboration with several new
clients including a popular and quality Japanese brand, a few well-known
Chinese causal wear brands as well as some notable North American retail

brands which provide high potential going forward.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Production Capacity and Operational Measurement

The Group's production capacity maintained at about 25 million pounds
of fabric dyeing per month, which was diversified among four fabric mills
in both China and Sri Lanka. The upgrade of equipment has leveraged
the advantages of the integrated production and supply chain of knitting,
dyeing and printing as well as the feature of rapid response, in addition
to higher efficiency and lower energy consumption. In respect of lowering
controllable costs, the Group has implemented the following measures:
deregistrating inactive or non-profitable companies and business to reduce
administrative costs, integrating the garment business to reduce operating
costs, focusing on high value-added orders to ensure sufficient orders and
greater competitiveness, and further implementing the methods of energy
saving and emission reduction to comply with the government requirement
on environmental protection and reduce the overall energy consumption
of the production mills. These measures have achieved notable results,
enabling the Group to allocate funds to other appropriate use. Last but not
least, the Group has optimized the work allocation of employees, which
helped to improve the management structure and operation procedure. By
clearly identifying the work division of each department, the execution ability

of the overall management was significantly enhanced.

Capital Investment

The Group is committed in continuous investing in infrastructure, machinery
and information systems according to the operation needs and future
development plan. With ten mills and factories within the Group, regular
infrastructure maintenance and machinery upgrade are necessary to ensure
continuous improvement in operations. The Group plans to continue fine-
tuning the enterprise resource planning system SAP during 2016. It is
expected that the overall operational efficiency and productivity will be

improved as a result of the full implementation of new system.

Dividend

In view of the financial results and cash flow situation of the Group, the
Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of HK4 cents per share for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK4 cents). The total dividend
for the year would be HK4 cents per share as compared with HK4 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2014. Subject to the approval of
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 24
June 2016 (Friday), it is expected that the payment of final dividend will be
made on or before 21 July 2016 (Thursday).
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Event after the Reporting Period

HwEHERER

The Group did not have any significant events since the end of 2015 and up

to the date of this annual report.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The key operating and financial indicators of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2015 are set out below:

Bt %5 [ B8

IS IEEZ5 T

B2015FREEEARFH A B - A& B EEM
BERFRE-

REBBE20I5FI2A3IBIEFEZFELER

2015 2014
20154 20144
Statement of Profit or Loss Items BHRIEAR
(All amounts in HK$ thousands unless (BRI E S8
otherwise stated) HLAFHETIR)
Revenue =E 6,653,051 6,891,133
Gross profit EF 807,645 714,817
EBITDA BRITE R # AT A B 350,192 363,665
Profit for the year EEERF 128,074 95,761
Profit attributable to owners of the Company ~— ZN2X Bl %A A JE(E & 7 99,860 90,590
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREARZF OB 8.3 7.5
Key Financial Ratios FEMBKLEE
Profitability ratios B FFE Lt E
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 12.1% 10.4%
EBITDA margin (%) BT E KI5 AT AR 2 (%) 5.3% 5.3%
Expenses as a % of revenue B ERELF
Distribution and selling expenses DERIHEER 2.9% 2.5%
Administrative expenses THER 7.1% 6.4%
Finance costs ELE= PN 0.4% 0.5%
Asset efficiency BEME
Inventory turnover period (days) FERAEH (/) 88 77
Trade and bills receivables EERRBERFIA
turnover period (days) A (A) 72 73
Trade and bills payables EENFEREMNFIA
turnover period (days) A (H) 53 47
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BB R R AT

At At
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
M2015612H31H 201412 A31H

Asset ratios BEHE
Current ratio MENLE & 2.1 19
Net debt/EBITDA ratio BER BBITE R A
s (0.6) 0.1
Revenue s 2

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 approximately

amounted to HK$6,653,051,000 (2014: HK$6,891,133,000).

Revenue by business segments

FY2015
2015815

84.6%

In current year, the Group’s core business, production and sales of dyed
fabrics, sewing threads and yarns, generated revenue of approximately
HK$5,626,076,000 (2014: HK$5,918,787,000), accounted for 84.6%
(2014: 85.9%). Revenue from production and sales of garments was
approximately HK$1,026,975,000 (2014: HK$972,346,000), accounted for
15.4% (2014: 14.1%) of the Group's total revenue.

EEHE2015F12A3IB I FENEEEN A
6,653,051,000% 7T (20144 : 6,891,133,0005#

JT) e

Production and Sales of Dyed Fabrics,
Sewing Threads and Yarns

SLERHE RN  BAR NG

Production and Sales of Garments

SUE M HEK K

RAFE SERLEB-HERFEERN.
RO RN EETENR5626,076,000% T
(20144F : 5,918,787,000/8 7T ) * 1584.6% (2014
F:85.9%) BERHERNKNEXBENR
1,026,975,000/% 7T (20144 : 972,346,000/%
L) IEEBEEEAENLS.4% (20145 :
14.1%) °
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Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2015, overall cost of sales of the Group
approximately amounted to HK$5,845,406,000 (2014: HK$6,176,316,000)
and overall gross profit margin was 12.1% (2014: 10.4%).

Distribution and Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s overall distribution
and selling costs approximately amounted to HK$191,745,000 (2014:
HK$171,917,000), accounted for 2.9% (2014: 2.5%) of the Group’s total

revenue.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s overall administrative
expenses approximately amounted to HK$469,362,000 (2014:
HK$440,515,000), accounted for 7.1% (2014: 6.4%) of the Group’s total

revenue.

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation
(EBITDA)
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s EBITDA approximately

amounted to HK$350,192,000 (2014: HK$363,665,000) and the EBITDA
margin was 5.3% (2014: 5.3%).

Finance Cost
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s finance costs

approximately amounted to HK$26,166,000 (2014: HK$34,983,000),
represented 0.4% (2014: 0.5%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group invested approximately
HK$118,322,000 (2014: HK$129,249,000) in additions of property, plant
and equipment, other intangible assets and prepaid lease payments. The
Group expects the capital expenditure for the next financial year will be

approximately HK$180,000,000.
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Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2015, income tax expense of the Group

approximately amounted to HK$24,133,000 (2014: HK$28,068,000).

Profit for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2015, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$99,860,000 (2014: HK$90,590,000) and
corresponding profit margin was 1.5% (2014: 1.3%).

Inventory

The Group’s inventory approximately amounted to HK$1,410,330,000
(2014: HK$1,301,897,000) as at 31 December 2015. The inventory
turnover period was 88 days, an increase of 11 days compared with 77 days

in 2014.

Trade and Bills Receivables

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s trade and bills receivables approximately
amounted to HK$1,313,533,000 (2014: HK$1,387,513,000). Trade and
bills receivables turnover period was 72 days, a decrease of 1 day compared

with 73 days in 2014.

Trade and Bills Payables

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s trade and bills payables approximately
amounted to HK$851,477,000 (2014: HK$801,396,000). Trade and bills
payables turnover period was 53 days, an increase of 6 days compared with
47 days in 2014.
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FriS & H
EEEFHZE2015F12A831H It FE ZFERHZE A
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EansMt kI ERER

At 31 December 2015, the Group's net assets amounted to approximately 7 2015F12A31H S B E EFE Y
HK$3,394,756,000 (2014: 3,325,623,000). The key figures of financial  3,394,756,0005% jt (20144 : 3,325,623,0007
TL) BIBARRANEEER AT

Liquidity and Financial Resources

position were as follows:

At At

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

M2015%F12H31H MH2014F12A31H

HK$’000 F & T HK$'000 F &

Non-current assets ERBEE 1,707,950 1,789,197
Current assets mENEE 3,722,604 3,776,536
Total assets BERE 5,430,554 5,565,733
Current liabilities e 8 fE 1,809,609 1,957,936
Non-current liabilities FEmBBEE 226,189 282,174
Total liabilities BERE 2,035,798 2,240,110
Net assets BEFE 3,394,756 3,325,623

The Group met its funding requirements in its usual course of operation SEBENZEMSRESREMBETHNREHERE
by cash flows from operations, as well as long-term and short-term bank N EHELFE MEARFEX T EHEHIRIT
borrowings. Capital expenditure was mainly financed by long-term bank &R -

borrowings.
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At 31 December 2015, the principal financial covenant figure/ratios

(according to the banks’ definitions) were as follows:

BB R R AT

M2016F12A318 T 2MPBEHEIE &
(REBRITHER)WT:

At At
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
MA2015%12A31H 2014412 A31H
Consolidated tangible net worth BEFBEMEE HK$3,019,313,000 HK$2,977,470,000
Consolidated total bank debt to RAERIRITTEEY
consolidated tangible net worth REFEREELD 0.2 0.3
Consolidated EBITDA to A BRI E R A E
consolidated interest expense ERE T B S 13.4 10.4
Consolidated current assets to AR EEY
consolidated current liabilities RAanRBa &L 2.1 1.9
Consolidated capital expenditure HAEEARAX HK$118,322,000 HK$129,249,000

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had complied with all

financial covenant figure/ratios.

Risk Management

The Group followed a stringent and prudent risk management policy to

manage foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

The sales and the purchase of raw materials of the Group were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), US dollars (“USD”) and
Renminbi (“RMB”). Since the Group mainly carries out production in China,
thus we are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from RMB exposure.
As a result of the People’s Bank of China announced the wider of RMB
trading band and a continuous strong USD trend during the year, the Group
had stopped all currency forward contracts and exchanged RMB via spot
currency market. Since RMB is expected to fluctuate sharply in the near
future, we will take a prudent approach to review the foreign currency

hedging strategy as appropriate in order to mitigate the foreign currency risk.

M2015%2014F12R31H - "&EE 2 EFEH
BROBIE X

[ B B 38
£ 8 € (IR 1R B I LR B I 0
B ER -

SEHEMRBIRBAB T ELRARES
T -MEENEEEMURTE B RARKE
PRELXZINERR HRPRARRITEEAR
BerNSRE BN LEXTBENAFER

B SECEILAAINEERREH  XRBETHISN
ETSAMARE ARFEMARBEESRE S

RERS - B E RGN TE )
S5 B A1 L

TER R INE
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In addition, bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in HKD and
USD, interests were mainly charged on a floating rate basis. Despite the
slow recovery of the global economy in current year, the Group expected
that US interest rates might rise in the coming year. The Group will continue
to monitor the interest rates fluctuation in the market and will arrange

appropriate financial instruments to minimise the interest rate risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 12,100 full time
employees (2014: 11,600). The Group’s emolument policies are formulated
on the performance of individual employee and the salary trends in various
regions, which are reviewed regularly. Subject to the Group’s profitability,
the Group may also distribute discretionary bonus to its employees as an

incentive for their contribution to the Group.

The Group has established a share option scheme for its employees, and
also provides regular training courses and subsidies for continuing education
so as to improve the skills of its employees with respect to production, selling

and management.

OUTLOOK

A series of operational equipment upgrades in all our fabric mills will
contribute greatly to the benefits of the Group in the long run. The market
sentiment towards the business environment of 2016 is generally pessimistic
and shall remain full of challenges. Despite the uncertainties ahead, the
Group shall maintain a prudent and pragmatic approach. The Board and
the management believe that the Group’s marketing strategy and the above
operational measures can play a positive role in the long-term business
development and continuous efficiency improvement, so that the Group can
enjoy higher profitability, stable financial position and a solid foundation for

better performance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures. Throughout the year from 1
January 2015 to 31 December 2015 (the “Year”), except for the deviations
as disclosed in this report, the Company has consistently adopted
and complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”, respectively) as

guidelines to reinforce our corporate governance principles.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at 31 December 2015, the board of directors of the Company (the
“Directors” and the “Board”, respectively) comprised 9 members, namely 4
executive Directors (the “EDs”), 2 non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”) and
3 independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”). During the Year and

up to the date of this report, the Board comprises the following members:

EDs

Mr. ZHAOQ Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. GONG Zhengyi

Mr. CHEN Minghong (appointed on 23 January 2015)
Madam LI Lan (retired on 23 January 2015)

NEDs
Dr. YEN Gordon
Mr. ZHANG Chong

INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP

Mr. YING Wei (appointed on 1 January 2015)
Mr. YANG Shibin (resigned on 1 January 2015)
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On 1 January 2015, Mr. YANG Shibin resigned as an INED and Mr. YING
Wei was appointed as a new INED. On 23 January 2015, Madam LI Lan
retired as an ED and Mr. CHEN Minghong was appointed as a new ED. The
number of INEDs continuously represents one-third of the Board as required
by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The profile of all the current Directors are
set out on pages 44 to 48 of this annual report. The relationships among the
Board members (including financial, business, family or other material or

relevant relationships, if any) are also disclosed there.

All Directors have entered into service contracts or letters of appointment
with the Company, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation and re-election
at the general meetings of the Company in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”). Article 102(A) of the Articles
provides that at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being, or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest one-third or any other number subject to such manner
of rotation as may be required by the Listing Rules or other codes, rules,
and regulations prescribed from time to time by the applicable regulatory
authority, shall retire from office. Article 93 of the Articles also provides that
any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken into account in

determining the Directors who are to retire by rotation at such meeting.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation to the
Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and is responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the business operations of the
Group in the interests of the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”)
by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the financial and

management performance of the Group.
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The overall management of the Group’s business was vested in the Board.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business to the executive management team, and focused its attention on
matters affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and the
Shareholders. The executive management team assumes full accountability
to the Board for the operations of the Group. A formal schedule was
formulated to identify specific matters that shall be reserved to the Board
and those delegated to the management. The Board has given clear
directions to the management that certain matters must be referred to the
Board for consideration and approval. The Board is the ultimate decision
making body of the Company except for matters requiring the approval of
the Shareholders in accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules and other

applicable laws and regulations.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

6 Board meetings were held during the Year and regular Board meetings
were held at approximately quarterly intervals during the Year. Each of
the Directors has actively participated in each meeting in person or via
telephone or videoconferencing. The Board consents were given by vote at

the Board meetings.

The dates of 2015 regular Board meetings were determined in 2014 and
any amendments to this schedule were notified to all Directors at least 14
days before the meetings. Appropriate arrangements were in place to allow

the Directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board meetings.
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All Directors had access to the services of the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) who regularly updated the Board
on governance and regulatory matters. Any Director, wishing to do so
in the furtherance of his/her respective duties, might take independent
professional advice (through the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)) at
the Company’s expense. The availability of professional advice extended to
3 other committees, namely the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee. Minutes of the Board meetings
were taken by the Company Secretary and, together with any supporting
documents, were available to all Directors. Draft and final versions of the
minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment and record respectively.
Mr. CHAN Siu Man had tendered his resignation as the Company Secretary
with effect from 16 October 2015. The Company then appointed Ms.
CHENG Wai Han Charmaine (“Ms. CHENG") and Mr. KWOK Siu Man
(“Mr. KWOK") as the joint company secretaries of the Company (the “Joint

Company Secretaries”) with effect from 18 November 2015.

If a Director had a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and such transaction or proposal was determined
by the Board to be material, the individual Director had to declare his/her
interest and was required to abstain from voting on any matter in which
he/she or any of his/her associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
a material interest and that he/she would not be counted in the quorum
present at the Board meeting. Such matters were considered at a Board
meeting attended by the INEDs who had no material interest in the

transaction or proposal.
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Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings, the
Audit Committee meetings, the Remuneration Committee meetings, the
Nomination Committee meetings and the general meetings during the Year

are set out in the following table:

EERE(EE)AREE 20]15FFH

EENEFEER EFZETEAN
BRAEZHFEIFR

REER EERNEEREH
PHEEEER RAZATEARBEAEN

HEFBIEN T

T8

Meetings attended/Meetings required to attend during the Year

AEERNESCHRERY BEHEZES

Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEpE Ezg EnZBEe HHZEE REZEE RREFAS
EDs HITEE
Mr. ZHAO Yao HRTE 6/6 - - 2/2 171
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor ERTRAE 6/6 - - - 17
Mr. GONG Zhengyi E{ELE 6/6 - 3/4 - 11
Mr. CHEN Minghong RIS A 5
(appointed on 23 January 2015) (M2015F1A23BEZ1E) 5/6 - - - 01
Madam LI Lan £ pe
(retired on 23 January 2015) (R2015F1 A23RRIT) 11 - - - -
NEDs HHITEE
Dr. YEN Gordon BEH#ET 6/6 - - - 11
Mr. Zhang Chong RERE 6/6 4/4 - - 17
INEDs BUHHTEE
Mr. NG Kwok Tung hEIR S E 6/6 4/4 4/4 - 171
Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, s8s, P JAXEBEL4 - g1tz A a1 6/6 4/4 - 2/2 11
Mr. YING Wei EELE
(appointed on 1 January 2015) (R2015F1A1HEZE) 5/6 - 4/4 212 11
Date of the meetings SEAH 23/1/2015 9/1/2015 20/1/2015 20/1/2015 24/6/2015
20/3/2015 17/3/2015 17/3/2015 17/3/2015
24/6/2015 9/7/2015 13/8/2015
20/8/2015 13/8/2015 29/12/2015
18/11/2015
29/12/2015
Training of Directors S

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding the
duties and responsibilities as a Director, the relevant laws, rules and
regulations applicable to the Directors, the duty of disclosure of interest and

business of the Group and such induction materials will also be provided to

newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.

MEEEHCERHABRETES ZCRARA
T ERAREEZHBEDN  RARRG - mH
BEEMAEEER 2 ABIESIER MRH(E
EERZERARRAERR NEREHARE

REZENHAER -

31



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2015

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRSE

All Directors have been updated fro
developments and changes in the List
regulatory requirements to ensure complia

of good corporate governance practices.

m time to time on the latest
ing Rules and other applicable

nce and enhance their awareness

Each of the Directors has confirmed that he/she had complied with code

provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. Throughout the

Year, each of the Directors named below has participated in continuous

professional development by attending s

eminars/in-house briefing/reading

materials on the following topics to develop and refresh his/her knowledge

and skills and provided a record of training to the Company:

Name of Directors

EDs
Mr. ZHAO Yao
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor
Mr. GONG Zhengyi
Mr. CHEN Minghong
(appointed on 23 January 2015)
Madam LI Lan
(retired on 23 January 2015)

NEDs
Dr. YEN Gordon
Mr. Zhang Chong

INEDs
Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP

Mr. YING Wei
(appointed on 1 January 2015)

Notes:

(a)
(b)
(c)

corporate governance
regulatory, risk management

finance, business operation/management

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate

potential legal action against the Directors.
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(a), (b) and (c)
(a), (b) and (c)
(a), (b) and (c)
(a), (b) and (c)

(a), (b) and (c)

(@), (b) and (c)
(a), (b) and (c)

(a), (b) and (c)

(@), (b) and (c)

(a), (b) and (c)

insurance coverage in respect of
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (THE
“CEO”)

With effect from 23 January 2015, Mr. ZHAO Yao, the Chairman and an
ED, has taken up the position of CEO of the Company, details of which
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 23 January 2015. This
deviates from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which stipulates that
the responsibilities of the chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. However,
having considered the current status of the Group, vesting the roles of
both chairman and chief executive officer in the same person enables the
Group to plan its overall strategy more efficiently and achieve the budgeted
target. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority under
this arrangement is adequately ensured by the Board which comprises
experienced, professional and high caliber individuals with sufficient number

thereof being INEDs.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

All the existing NEDs and INEDs were appointed for a specific term. Each
of the NEDs and INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of 1 year, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation and
re-election at the general meetings of the Company in accordance with the

Articles.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board considers that all the INEDs are independent and at least one
of them has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. The Company had made specific enquiries of all Directors and
all of them have confirmed their compliance with the required standards set

out in the Model Code throughout the Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has established 3 committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee, each with specific terms of reference. Their terms of reference
have been approved and reviewed by the Board and are updated by
reference to the CG Code from time to time. The terms of reference of
each of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Audit Committee have been posted on the respective websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

During the Year, these committees adhered to their principles, procedures
and arrangements set out in their respective terms of reference. The
respective committee secretaries took full minutes of the meetings of these
committees and the work of each of these committees was reported to the

Board regularly.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference and its principal duties are 1) to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy for all Directors, 2) to review and
approve the Company’s remuneration policy and make recommendations to
the Board, and 3) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
and incentive assessment indicators proposals by reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives for the Board’s approval. The Company’s
remuneration policy is to provide a competitive level of remuneration in
accordance with current market conditions to attract and motivate the

Directors and staff for their contribution.
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During the Year and as at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises 1 ED, namely Mr. GONG Zhengyi, and 2 INEDs,
namely Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr. YING Wei (appointed on 1 January
2015), and is chaired by Mr. YING Wei. The Remuneration Committee
held 4 meetings during the Year and details of attendance are shown in
the table on page 31 of this annual report. A summary of the work of the

Remuneration Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

o made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Director, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment and assessed their

performance;

° reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration and incentive
assessment indicators proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate

goals and objectives; and

° ensured that no Director or any of the respective associates is involved

in deciding his/her remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference and its principal duties are 1) to review the structure, size and
diversity of the Board and the Executive Committee at least annually, 2) to
identify and recommend suitably qualified candidates as new Director(s)
or to fill Board vacancies as they arise and to assess candidates as new
member(s) of the Executive Committee or to fill the vacancies of the Board
committees as they arise, for the approval of the Board, 3) to assess the
independence of the INEDs and 4) to review the policy of diversity of the
Board (the “Policy”).
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Criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee in considering whether the
relevant personnel are suitable as Directors include their qualifications,
experience, expertise, skills, knowledge, ethnicity, age, cultural background
and so on in view of the provisions of the Listing Rules and the Policy as

adopted by the Board and summarised as follows:

Purposes:

1. toincrease diversity at the level of the Board;

2. to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and the quality of its
performance; and

3. to support the attainment of strategic objectives/plan and sustainable

and balanced development of the Company.

Measurable Objectives

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, regional and industry
experience, skills, knowledge and other experience of the Directors. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected

candidate(s) will bring to the Board.

Monitoring and Review

The Nomination Committee has been monitoring and reviewing the Policy

and will recommend any revisions thereof (if appropriate) to the Board.

The Nomination Committee, as at the date of this annual report, comprises
1 ED, Mr. ZHAO Yao, and 2 INEDs, namely Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony,
SBS, JP and Mr. YING Wei (appointed on 1 January 2015) and is chaired by
Mr. ZHAO Yao. Madam LI Lan and Mr. YANG Shibin ceased to act as the
chairman and a member of the Nomination Committee upon her retirement
as an ED on 23 January 2015 and his resignation as an INED on 1 January

2015 respectively.
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The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the Year and details
of attendance are shown in the table on page 31 of this annual report. A
summary of the work of the Nomination Committee during the Year is set out

as follows:

° made recommendations to the Board and determined the Policy on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment or

re-appointment of Directors and assess independence of the INEDs;

. reviewed the Policy; and

o reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and assessed
the balance of skills and experience of the Board as expedient with
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Group.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the

appointment of new Directors to the Board. The Committee will first consider

necessary changes in respect of the structure, size and diversity of the

Board, identify suitably qualified candidates by considering their professional

knowledge and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal

skills and time commitments, and makes recommendations to the Board
for decision. The nomination criteria also include the nominee’s skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the Group’s business and, for

INEDs, the nominee’s independence.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Company’s financial reporting process and internal controls. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee are to consider the appointment and
remuneration of the external auditors, to monitor the integrity of the Group’s
financial statements with focus on the changes in accounting policies and
practices, major judgmental areas, significant audit adjustments, going
concern assumptions, and compliance with accounting standards, the
Listing Rules and other applicable legal requirements, and to review the

Group's financial reporting system and internal control procedures.
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During the Year and as at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee comprises 1 NED, namely Mr. ZHANG Chong, and 2 INEDs,
namely Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP and is
chaired by Mr. NG Kwok Tung.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the Year and details of

attendance are shown in the table on page 31 of this annual report. A

summary of the work of the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as

follows:

33

provided recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
reappointment of independent auditors, and approved the audit fee

and the terms of engagement of the independent auditors;

reviewed and monitored the independent auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards, and discussed with the independent
auditors before audit commenced, the nature and scope of the audit

and reporting obligations;

reviewed the financial statements, interim report and annual report, as
well as significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
reviewed financial controls, internal controls and risk management

systems;

discussed the internal control system with management to ensure
that the management had performed its duty to achieve an effective
internal control system. Such discussion included the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes

and budget of accounting and financial reporting function;

ensured co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensured that the internal audit function was adequately resourced
and had appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewed and

monitored its effectiveness;

reviewed the financial and accounting policies and practices; and
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° reviewed the independent auditors’ management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditors to management regarding the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and

management’s response.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees paid/payable to BDO Limited, the Group's independent auditors,
in respect of audit and non-audit services for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$2,908,000 and HK$1,024,000 respectively. The non-

audit services mainly consisted of review, consultancy and taxation services.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Company. They were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
independent auditors’ statement about their reporting responsibilities is set

out on pages 62 and 63 of this annual report.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the re-appointment of the independent auditor, and they both have agreed
to recommend the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the Company’s
independent auditor for the ensuing year at the 2016 annual general

meeting of the Company (the “AGM”).
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and has
conducted reviews on its effectiveness through convening meetings regularly

to discuss financial, operational and risk management control.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties for
the Group, including (a) developing and reviewing the policies and practices

n (i) corporate governance and (ii) compliance with legal and regulations
requirements of the Company; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and management;
and (c) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the
Corporate Governance Report. The Board has, amongst other matters,
reviewed this Corporate Governance Report, ensuring compliance with the

Listing Rules.

According to the Stock Exchange’s proposal on risk management and
internal control under the CG Code applicable to accounting periods of
listed companies commencing on or after 1 January 2016, the Board should
oversee the Company's risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis and has delegated such responsibilities to the Audit
Committee. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was revised and
adopted on 26 February 2016 to include the responsibilities on reviewing

the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHENG Wai Han, Charmaine joined the Group in October 2003 and
is currently a Joint Company Secretary and the Deputy General Manager
(Corporate Governance Department) of the Company. She has over 15 years
of extensive working experience specializing in investor relations, credit
management, company secretarial matters, corporate affairs and insurance
operation. Ms. CHENG obtained a Bachelor's degree of Commerce from
Mount Allison University, Canada and an Executive Master's degree in
Business Administration (EMBA) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
However, she does not possess the specified qualifications for a company
secretary as required by Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. Ms. CHENG has
received no less than 15 hours of professional training in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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Given the important role of the Company Secretary in the corporate
governance function of the Company, particularly in assisting the Company
and the Directors in complying with the Listing Rules and other relevant
laws and regulations, the Company also appointed Mr. KWOK who meets
the requirement under Note 1 to Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules as the other
Joint Company Secretary with effect from 18 November 2015 to work closely
with and provide assistance to Ms. CHENG in discharge of the latter’s duties
and responsibilities as a Joint Company Secretary. Mr. KWOK was nominated
by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as
a Joint Company Secretary and Boardroom has been providing certain
corporate secretarial services to the Company pursuant to an engagement
letter entered into between the Company and Boardroom. The primary
person at the Company with whom Mr. KWOK has been contacting in

respect of company secretarial matters is Ms. CHENG.

As Mr. KWOK was first appointed as the company secretary of a Hong Kong
Hang Seng Index constituent stock company in 1991 and has been acting in
such capacity for a number of other reputable companies listed on the Stock
Exchange at substantial times since then, he is not required to have at least
15 hours of relevant continuous professional development training under the
Listing Rules since 2012. However, despite the above exemption, Mr. KWOK

had delivered and attended over 15 hours’ relevant seminars in the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and the management of the Company endeavour to maintain
a continuing communication with the Shareholders and investors through
various channels, including the Company’s general meetings. Set out below
is a summary of how the Shareholders can convene a general meeting and

put forward proposals at such meetings.

Convening a general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 566-569 of the new Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), Shareholder(s)
holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having
a right to vote at general meetings may, by written request authenticated by
the Shareholder making it and sent to the Company, require the Directors to

call a meeting.
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The written request (i) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with; and (ii) may include the text of a resolution that may properly be

moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.

The Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which
they become subject to the requirement and such meeting must be held

within 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

If the written request received by the Company identifies a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, the
notice of the meeting must include notice of the resolution. The business
that may be dealt with at the meeting includes a resolution of which notice
has been included in such notice of meeting. If the resolution is to be
proposed as a special resolution, the Directors must include, in the notice of
the meeting, the text of the resolution and specifies the intention to propose

the resolution as a special resolution.

If the Directors do not call a meeting as required by the written request
mentioned above, the Shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,

may themselves call a general meeting.

The meeting to be called by the Shareholders must be called (i) within
3 months after the date on which the Directors become subject to the
requirement to call a meeting and (ii) in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which that meeting is required to be called by the

Directors.

The business that may be dealt with at the meeting includes a resolution of

which notice has been included in the notice of meeting.
Any reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders requesting the

meeting by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to call a meeting must

be reimbursed by the Company.

42

ZEEER ()AL
KA 2Erta
ah HR G AN

LA EH R —RIEE
BB LREZRERKRE LS

EEVARMAZEERRRAGNREMRR
BHR2IAABRKRRARE ZAEREAH
ZIRA & R B A H R 28 H AT -

IMRARARREBETME R HHH AR ELE
AU BAEZBRAE LBENRZ KSR
VRABEZAZNBAN CEEERSBAAN
RiE - BIFSIRZAE LEBNER - RRER
RE/SBIRER BEFVARBRRAENE
BEORFEN XA - WHE AR A RIR
FAREZRZENER -

MREERERLAEEERNREAREZ
AIZRAFZBRRAEHRR  HEE2BZFKR

ROBROREBLBOBRR TETERRRX

=3
=

o

BREMANEH VRANVEEEXIARAKRRX
SHREMRRNBERONIEARN - R(DEARE
REEAARZBERAENREETAGH-

AEZBRRA S LRENER
BN HRE

BREEIARE

WREFLALZRABRAKRRRE EHEREH
ERORREEZEMNSERY Keh

Z o

=



Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance, a Shareholder may
request the Company to circulate a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in any proposed resolution or other

business to be dealt with in any general meeting.

To put forward proposals at the meeting, a written request must be made
by (i) Shareholder(s) holding at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote on a proposed resolution at
the meeting; or (ii) at least 50 members who have a relevant right to vote on

a proposed resolution at the meeting.

The written request, authenticated by the person(s) making it, must identify
the statement to be circulated, and must be received by the Company at
least 7 days before the relevant meeting. The expenses of circulating such
statement must be paid by the Shareholder(s) who requested the circulation
of the statement unless (i) the Company resolves otherwise or (ii) the
meeting to which the requests related is an AGM; or (iii) requests sufficient
to require the Company to circulate the statement are received in time to
enable the Company to send a copy of the statement at the same time as it

gives notice of the meeting.

Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries in respect of their shareholdings
to the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other
Shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations
Representative of the Company whose contact details are shown under

“Shareholder Information” of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents during

the Year.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (the “EDs")

Mr. ZHAO Yao

Chairman of the Board, ED and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”)
Chairman of Nomination Committee

Aged 52, was appointed as an ED on 27 November 2012, and as the
Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee on
14 November 2014. He was further appointed as the CEO of the Company
on 23 January 2015. Mr. ZHAO has almost 28 years of experience in the
textile industry. He joined the predecessor of Chinatex Corporation* (/1
B 455 B2 E]) (“Chinatex”), China National Textiles Import and Export
Corporation* (B 475 4% 1 H A 482 7)) (“General Corporation”) in 1987
and held positions as the Assistant President of Chinatex, the General
Manager of Asset Management Department of Chinatex, Chairman and
General Manager of Chinatex Xinyuan Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (1 %
SREEEIRAFMR A, General Manager of Chinatex Tianyuan Property
Management Co., Ltd.* (B3I 4 AT EFRAF]), General Manager
of Chinatex Real Estate Administration Co., Ltd.* (P4 MEEE AR A
7)), Chairman of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited, Chairman of Huasheng
Fujitec Elevator Co., Ltd.* (EEFAE L EEHAEMR A F), Chairman of
Shanghai Huasheng Fujitec Escalator Co., Ltd.* ( F/EZEFE H KB AR
‘Ad]) , Chairman of Shanghai Huade Photoelectron Science & Technology
Co., Lid.* ( E/FEB X ERHLARAF]), Financial Manager of Wah Gar
Knitwear Factory Company Limited, General Manager of Suzhou Zhongfa
Property Management Co., Ltd.* (#R/M AW EHFR A7) and Vice
President of Chudai Trading Co., Ltd.* ( BANA K#k X &4t ) | a subsidiary of
Chinatex. Mr. ZHAO graduated with a diploma in industrial accounting from
Renmin University of China in 1987. In December 2013, Mr. ZHAO obtained
a Senior Management Master Degree of Business Administration issued by

University of Texas at Arlington in the United States of America (“USA”).

* For identification purpose only

* EREE
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor

Vice-Chairman of the Board

Director of various subsidiaries of the Company

Aged 50, joined the Group in 2002 as General Manager of the garment
business and became an ED in 2004. He was promoted to ED and Group
General Manager in 2009 and appointed as Group Managing Director in
May 2011. Mr. HA was appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Board and CEO
in June 2012. He has ceased to act as CEO of the Company since 21 March
2014. He serves as an Assistant Chairman of the Hong Kong Jiangyin
Trade Association; a Director of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles
Limited; a Director of HK Wuxi Trade Association; a Founding Member of
the Hong Kong Professionals & Senior Executives Association and a Member
of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council. He has been accredited as
Honorary Citizen of Jiangmen City in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"); and was also awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong
Kong” from the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2010. He possesses a
degree in Production Engineering from Coventry University, United Kingdom.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HA has over 12 years of operations and
management experience in the garment trading and manufacturing industry.

Mr. HA is the brother-in-law of Dr. Yen Gordon.

Mr. GONG Zhengyi

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 61, was appointed as an ED and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 6 June 2012. Mr. GONG is currently the Senior Vice
President of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited. Mr. GONG has almost 31
years of experience in the textile industry. He joined General Corporation,
the predecessor of Chinatex, in 1984 and served as General Manager of
Chinatex Raw Materials International Trading Corporation, a subsidiary of
Chinatex. He also held position as General Manager of Chinatex (Australia)
Wool Company Proprietary Limited, a subsidiary of Chinatex, General
Manager of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited, a subsidiary of Chinatex.
Mr. GONG graduated from the Faculty of Chinese Studies of Hebei
University, China, with a major in Chinese Literature in 1979. He obtained
a Certificate of Marketing and Management in Macquarie Graduate School
of Management, Australia in 1997. Mr. GONG also has obtained the

qualification of Foreign Trade Management Economist.
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Mr. CHEN Minghong

Aged 48, was served as a NED for the period from 6 June 2012 to 27
November 2012. He was appointed as an ED on 23 January 2015. Mr.
CHEN has almost 23 years of experience in the textiles industry. He is
currently the General Manager of Chinatex Cotton Import and Export
Corporation*® (Hf 45 #8 £ 3 ) O 2 &)) (“Chinatex Cotton”), a subsidiary
of Chinatex. Mr. CHEN joined General Corporation, the predecessor of
Chinatex, in March 1993. He served successively as the Deputy Manager
and Manager of Cotton Department of Chinatex Cotton, Assistant to General
Manager and Deputy General Manager of Chinatex Cotton. Mr. CHEN
graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree from the Department of Foreign

Languages of Tsinghua University in 1989.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. YEN Gordon

Aged 46, has been a NED of the Company since 31 May 2013. Prior to
that, he was the Chief Financial Officer and an ED of the Group. He joined
the Group in 1999 and was then promoted to the role of ED in 2004 before
assuming the role of NED. Dr. YEN is currently the Managing Director of
Radiant Venture Capital Limited. He also serves as an independent non-
executive director and the chairman of the remuneration committee of
Hopewell Holdings Limited. Dr. YEN is a member of the Henan Province
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the
People’s Republic of China; a director of GS1 HK Limited; and a director of
the Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Manufacturing Engineering from Boston University, USA; a Master
degree in Business Administration from McGill University, Canada and a
Doctorate in Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic

University. Dr. YEN is the brother-in-law of Mr. HA Kam On, Victor.

* For identification purpose only
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHANG Chong

Member of Audit Committee

Aged 45, was appointed as a NED and a member of the Audit Committee
on 6 June 2012. Mr. ZHANG is currently the General Manager of Investment
Management Department of Chinatex. Mr. ZHANG has over 20 years of
experience in the textiles industry. He joined General Corporation, the
predecessor of Chinatex, in 1995 and held positions as the General Manager
of Strategy Department, Deputy General Manager of Strategy Department
and General Manager of Investment Department of Chinatex, Deputy
General Manager of Enterprise Management Department of Chinatex,
Officer of Policy Research Office and Assistant of Manager Office of General
Corporation. Mr. ZHANG graduated with a Master's degree in Business
Management from the Faculty of Business Administration, University
of International Business and Economics, China in 1995. Mr. ZHANG
completed an Executive Master’s degree in Business Administration (EMBA)

at China Europe International Business School (CEIBS) in 2014.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(the “INEDs")

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Chairman of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 65, joined the Board in 1993 as an INED. Mr. NG is a practising
accountant. He is also an independent non-executive director of Universe
International Holdings Limited until his retirement on 2 December 2013 and
a non-executive director of Wah Ha Reality Company Limited, both of which
are listed companies in Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce
Degree and a Licentiate in Accountancy from McGill University, Canada and
a Diploma in Chinese Law from the University of East Asia, Macao. Mr. NG is
a Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Institute of
Chartered Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Order of Chartered
Professional Accountants of Quebec, The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Professional Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, The Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and the Society of Registered Financial

Planners in Hong Kong.
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Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Aged 65, joined the Board in 2004 as an INED. Mr. CHOW has been
practicing as a solicitor in Hong Kong for the past 36 years and is a
partner in the law firm, Messrs. Peter C. Wong, Chow & Chow. He is a non-
executive director of Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited, and Chun Wo
Development Holdings Limited, companies listed in Hong Kong. He also sits
on the board of The Link Management Limited which manages The Link
Real Estate Investment Trust. For the period from June 2005 to July 2011,
Mr. CHOW was an independent non-executive director of Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr.
CHOW was the chairman of the Process Review Panel for the Securities
and Futures Commission until 31 October 2012. He is the deputy chairman
of Appeal Board on Public Meetings and Processions and Chairman of
Process Review Panel for the Financial Reporting Council. He is also a
member of National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and the deputy chairman of the board of Stewards of The Hong

Kong Jockey Club.

Mr. YING Wei

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Aged 49, was appointed as an INED, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee on 1 January
2015. Mr. YING holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration from
the University of San Francisco and a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from
the Zhejiang Gongshang University (formerly known as Hangzhou Institute
of Commerce) in the PRC. He is a non-practicing member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. For the period from 1989 to 2007,
Mr. YING served as an executive director and the vice president of China
Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company Limited. Between 2007 and 2009,
he served as the vice president of China Water Affairs Group Limited, a
company listed in Hong Kong. From 21 July 2008 to 30 July 2009, he held
the position of an executive director and the president of China Botanic
Development Holdings Limited (now re-named as China Water Property
Group Limited), a company listed in Hong Kong. From 28 December 2012
to 24 March 2014, he served as an independent non-executive director of
China Public Procurement Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr.
YING is currently an independent non-executive director of CHTC Fong’s
Industries Company Limited and the chairman and a non-executive director
of New Focus Auto Tech Holdings Limited, both listed companies in Hong

Kong. Mr. YING is also the Managing Director of CDH Investments.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present the annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the Year ended 31 December 2015 (the

“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the textile and garment businesses including the
production and sale of knitted fabric, garments and the sale of sewing
threads. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in

note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group'’s financial performance for the Year and the financial position of
the Group at 31 December 2015 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 64 to 168 of this annual report. No interim dividend
was declared for the six months ended 30 June 2015. The Directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK4 cents per share to
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) on the register of
members on 8 July 2016, amounting to HK$48,201,000, and the retention

of the remaining profit for the Year.

Subject to the approval of Shareholders of the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) to be held on 24 June 2016 (Friday),
it is expected that the payment of final dividend will be made on or before

21 July 2016 (Thursday).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of the
performance for the Year and an indication of likely future development in
the business of the Group are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis (the “MD&A”) of this annual report.
Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can
be found throughout this annual report, in particular the Risk Management
section under the MD&A and the Possible Risks and Uncertainties section
under of this Director’'s Report. Particulars of important events affecting the
Company that have occurred (if any) can be found in this annual report
and the Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements. An analysis using
financial key performance indicators are provided in the Financial Highlights
and the MD&A. Compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
significant impact on the Group can be found throughout this annual report,

in particular, the Corporate Governance Report.
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In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
relationships with the key stakeholders that have a significant impact
on the Group are discussed in the Chairman’s Statement and Awards &

Certification Section of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's possible risks and uncertainties range from raw material risk,

market risk, operational risk, credit risk and financial risk.

Raw Material Risk

The Group’s business is dependent on the supply and cost of raw materials,
in particular cotton yarns and any disruption in the supply or fluctuation in
the prices of such raw materials could materially and adversely affect the

Group'’s business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Market Risk

The global financial markets have experienced volatility recently, which may
have a negative impact on the Group’s business operation. The financial
uncertainty may affect the global textile and garment industry, which in turn
may affect the business of major retail brands and garment manufacturers,

which are the principal customers of the Group.

Operational Risk

The Group's fabric production facilities emit wastewater and other
pollutants and are subject to various environmental protection laws and
regulations in China and other countries where the Group’s production
facilities are located. Any change to, or failure by the Group to comply with,
environmental protection laws or regulations may cause the Group to incur

additional costs and expenses.
In addition, if the production facilities of the Group experience power, steam

or water shortages, the Group’s business and results of operations may be

harmed.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that a customer in a transaction may
default. The Group identifies and manages credit risk by defining the target
market segment, formulating appropriate credit policies, and carrying
out credit assessment and monitoring of asset quality. The Group has
established policies, procedures, and rating systems to identify, measure,
monitor, control and report on credit risk. They are reviewed and enhanced
on an ongoing basis to cater for market changes, statutory requirements and

best practices in risk management processes.

Financial Risk

For financial risk, please refer to Risk Management section under the MD&A

and note 36(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties are set out on page 61.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group had additions of HK$117,811,000 to property,
plant and equipment, which were mainly used to expand and upgrade the

Group’s manufacturing facilities.

Details of the above and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders as at
31 December 2015 amounted to HK$1,333,630,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$1,264,618,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were as

follows:

EDs

Mr. ZHAO Yao (appointed as Chairman on 14 November 2014
and CEO on 23 January 2015)

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. GONG Zhengyi

Mr. CHEN Minghong (appointed on 23 January 2015)

Madam LI Lan (retired on 23 January 2015)

NEDs
Dr. YEN Gordon
Mr. ZHANG Chong

INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBs, JP

Mr. YING Wei (appointed on 1 January 2015)
Mr. YANG Shibin (resigned on 1 January 2015)

According to the articles of association of the Company, Mr. HA Kam
On,Victor (“Mr. Ha"), Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP (“Mr. Chow”),
and Mr. Gong Zhengyi (“Mr. Gong”) will retire at the forthcoming AGM and
all of them are eligible for re-election. Mr. Ha has offered himself for re-
election at the AGM whereas Mr. Chow and Mr. Gong have decided not to
stand for re-election at the AGM as they desire to devote more time on the
respective public appointments and Company’s business commitments. The
Company will identify suitable candidates to fill up the vacancies arising from

the decisions of Mr. Chow and Mr. Gong not to stand for re-election.

As at 31 December 2015, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM had a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 44 to 48 of this

annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive and their respective associates in the shares and
underlying shares in and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“the SFQ")), (a) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (b) as
otherwise notified to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company (the “Shares”) and underlying

EERE(EE)AREE 20]15FFH

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHS

EECESER

M2015%12A31H  RIF(@AR R RIRES LE
GEBIEI2EATHFE 2 B MATCE: R(D)IREF
RESTRIZBBAB T BR BEFRITREE KX
BEEBZBMBATRARE RERBEE (A

BHELBEEOBEXVEIR T 2BE) 2 AR
At (TBfn]) - HEARD RERETHE 2%

ERABWT :

RARB D ([Bn]) RERRHONFERER

Shares:

Approximate %
of the issued
share capital

Name of Directors Number of Shares Capacity HIEERITRA
EEpE IR 8 B 54 BO
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 35,363,096 Beneficial owner 2.93
R ke BB A
2,578,000 Spouse’s interests 0.21
(Note) [N o
(#1at)
Dr. YEN Gordon 8,380,000 Beneficial owner 0.70
BREEL BB A
Note: Hat -

As at 31 December 2015, Ms. LAW Ho Suen, Victoria, spouse of Mr. HA Kam On, Victor held
2,578,000 Shares as beneficial owner. Mr. HA Kam On, Victor, was deemed to be interested
in 2,578,000 Shares held by Ms. LAW Ho Suen, Victoria.
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Long

positions in underlying Shares — Share options:

Exercise price

RO FR B —BIRE:

Number of

Name of Directors Date of grant per Share Exercise period share options
EERR i A BB ITEE 1TEH BREHE
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 17.09.2010 HK$1.29 17.03.2014 - 17.03.2017 4,600,000
BRRTRE 1.29% T (Note 1)
(1)
18.08.2011 HK$1.21 19.08.2012 - 18.08.2017 3,300,000
12187t (Note 2)
(Hizt2)
Dr. YEN Gordon 18.08.2011 HK$1.21 19.08.2012 - 18.08.2017 1,320,000
BRESEL 1.21%8 7t (Notes 3)
(H1:33)
Notes: Biat
1. 30% of the share options are exercisable from 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017, up 1. 201443178 E201743A178 » AI1T{E30% 5 1%
to 60% of the share options are exercisable from 17 March 2015 to 17 March 2017 ¥ 20153178 22017438170 & Z Al 11{F
and all share options are exercisable from 17 March 2016 to 17 March 2017. 60%fE R : & R2016F3 A17H £201743A178 -
AT FT A R AR
2. 20% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017, up 2. H20124F8 H19H £201748 A18H » AI1T{E20%f# I%
to 40% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2013 to 18 August 2017, # 201348 A19H £201748A18H » & Z Al 171#
up to 60% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2014 to 18 August 40% & I 4 - FR20144F8 A19H £201748A18H ' &
2017, up to 80% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2015 to 18 %Al 1T{E60% M I # : 201568 19H 201748 A
August 2017 and all share options are exercisable from 19 August 2016 to 18 August 18H ' &% A]{7{E80% A% 1# : 201658 A19H &
2017. 201748 A18H * AITT{E A A M AR HE ©
3. 50% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2015 to 18 August 2017 3. 201548 A19H £201748 A18H » A 17{#50% i# A%
and all share options are exercisable from 19 August 2016 to 18 August 2017. 201658 A19H £201748A18H  a] 11T A
B
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the chief executive nor their B LB EIN I\ ES  (TRAHIEERE

respective associates had any interests or short positions in any shares and

underlying shares in and debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), (a) which were

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section

352 of the SFO or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 25 January 2002 (the
“2002 Scheme”) and another share option scheme 20 January 2011
(the “2011 Scheme”) respectively. Particulars and movements of the
Company’s share option schemes,namely the 2002 Scheme and the 2011
Scheme during the Year, are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of every person,
other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company as disclosed
above, in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares:

EERE(EE)AREE 20]15FFH

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHS

fERETE

RATF2002F1 H25H 20114 1 H20 H £ 4N AE
BT BI R 5 — B AR MR B (5 B [20024F &t
Bl R (201166 &1 81)) « AR R8I (B3
20024F 5 | R2011F 51 B)) 2 BB RN AFE 2
28 HNGRSMHRRMEIIA-

FERRREMBRRES

20156512 A31 B  RIEBEA R RIIRFEH R BAE K
PIE3B6HEMTFEZ EZRBEAMCEE B EX
FIEBEARNBESERITHREH ZERIN BEA
TRAD R KRR S R B R IOA B A
T

R MR RO B FRER:

Approximate %
of the issued

share capital

EOR(y
Name of substantial shareholders Number of Shares Capacity ERITRA
FTERRERB IR 5 & B 56 Bt
Chinatex Corporation (“Chinatex”) 433,098,000 Interest of controlled corporations 35.94
REFRGEERR ([F4]) (Notes 1 and 2) FEGIE B R 2R
(Hist1k2)
Chinatex Yieldfull Investment 409,036,000 Beneficial owner 33.94
Co., Ltd. (“Yieldfull”) (Note 1) EnEEA
RHOREREERERANT (K1at1)
(ragl)
Chinatex Jinhui Investment 409,036,000 Interest of a controlled corporation 33.94
Management Co., Ltd.* (“Jinhui”) (Note 1) 22 K B O A 2
PRI EERAREE AR (Bi7F1)
(Ieprl)
Mr. HA Chung Fong 63,400,000 Beneficial owner 11.00
B EE (Note 3) BEnEBA
(#17#3)
69,160,948 Other interests
(Notes 3 and 5) Hfth i o
(B33#3%5)

* For identification purpose only

*OEHES
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Approximate %
of the issued

share capital

#1G
Name of substantial shareholders Number of Shares Capacity BRITRAE
FTERRER RHEE 51 BoL
Ms. TANG Kuen Mui 132,560,948 Spouse’s interests 11.00
Btk + (Note 3) [iRgcp s
(K15£3)
Super Brilliance Company Limited 69,160,948 Beneficial owner 5.74
(“Super Brilliance”) (Notes 4 and 5) EmEA A
(H1a£4R25)
Island Treasure Investments Limited 69,160,948 Interest of a controlled corporation 5.74
(“Island Treasure”) (Notes 4 and 5) A E R R
(K1at455)
Onwide (H.K.) Limited (“Onwide”) 69,160,948 Trustee and interest of controlled 5.74
ZH(BE)BRAR ([ZA]) (Notes 4 and 5) corporations
(Hti#4%5) ZEEAREGEE M ER
Mr. WONG Tak Leung, Charles 69,160,948 Interest of controlled corporations 5.74
TERLE (Notes 4 and 5) 72 1) [ )
(H1a£4R25)
Notes: Biat -
1. Yieldfull is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jinhui and Jinhui is a wholly-owned subsidiary RUBIRIB2EWB AR MBBEARHZE2EN
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of Chinatex. Therefore, each of Jinhui and Chinatex is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Yieldfull.

As at 31 December 2015, Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited held 24,062,000 Shares
as beneficial owner. Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinatex. Chinatex is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Chinatex (H.K.)
Holding Limited.

Ms. TANG Kuen Mui, spouse of Mr. HA Chung Fong, was deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Mr. HA Chung Fong.

Super Brilliance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Island Treasure, Island Treasure is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Onwide and Onwide is owned as to 100% by Mr. WONG
Tak Leung, Charles. Therefore, each of Island Treasure, Onwide and Mr. WONG Tak
Leung, Charles is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Super Brilliance.

Onwide is the trustee of the HA Trust, a discretionary trust set up by Mr. HA Chung
Fong for the benefit of his family.

BAF - WERDHE QR RS RYAHH
Bt 2 M3 -

20156512 A31H % (FB)ERERAAFE
24,062,000 17 (tERBREAAN) P4 (FE)
ERERARATLHZE2EMBRR B P4
BERATY (BB IERER A BFTRRG 2 8% -

WKL T RERFT REZRE AMNEFEEE
HRTF5 S A PR AR 2 f s o

Super Brilliance&lsland TreasureZ 2 & M /& A &)
Island Treasure %Mz 2 &M B AT - M EER AL
AT 2B - B - Island Treasure * Z 1 &
TR A4S B AR ERE B Super BrilliancefT#5 1% 15
e

ZHAHA Trusti{E5E A HA TrustB EMFS R £ B E
RiEFzmmA e — B EET-



Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2015.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries, was a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in
this report below and note 41 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December
2015 or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the Year or during the period from 1 January
2016 to the date of this Report are available on the Company’s website at
www.fshl.com.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued its letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange. The information in relation to the continuing connected
transactions entered into during the Year are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The Company’s independent auditor has confirmed that all of the continuing
connected transactions set out under note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements (a) had been approved by the board of Directors (the “Board”);
(b) were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where
applicable; (c) had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing the transactions; and (d) had not exceeded the
respective cap amounts in respect of each of the continuing connected

transactions.

The INEDs have also reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions had been

entered into by the Group:
(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the

Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Shareholders as a whole.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company had redeemed its listed securities, nor
the Company or any of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of such

securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considered that all the INEDs meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in

accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees (including key management) of
the Group was established by the management of the Group on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence. The remuneration committee
of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) will review and approve the

remuneration policy to be recommended to the Board for approval.
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The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by
the Remuneration Committee to the Board for approval, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. No Director, or any of his associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and executives, is involved in dealing with his own

remuneration.

The Company has adopted the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements and under the

heading “Share-based Payment Transactions” in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in any business which
competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly with the

business of the Group.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the information
of Directors since the date of the 2015 Interim Report of the Company

required to be disclosed in this annual report are as follows:

(i)  Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony has served as a member in The
Exchange Fund Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Monetary Authority
since 1 October 2015; and

(i) Mr. NG Kwok Tung ceased to be a committee member of the Chinese
Temples Committee, Youth Square and The Board of Management
of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries since 17 September 2015, 31

December 2015 and 31 January 2016 respectively.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five

largest customers was less than 30% of the total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five

largest suppliers was less than 30% of the total purchases for the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling

HK$208,000 (2014: HK$463,000).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 27 to 43 of this annual

report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued Shares throughout the

Year and the period thereafter up to the date of this Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REVIEW

The Company has established an Audit Committee for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Company’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. The Audit Committee presently comprises
1 NED and 2 INEDs, and 1 of the INEDs act as the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited final results and

the system of internal control of the Company for the Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Board has taken the Audit Committee’s recommendation that a
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint BDO

Limited as the independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

ZHAO Yao

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
18 March 2016
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BRENFEHE

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

M2015F12A31H  REBKREMENFBNT

The Group’s
Location Lease Use effective interest
o B HEFH REg AEBANER
Unit A2 on 5/F., & unit Al on 7/F,, Medium-term leases Warehouse and office 100%
Eastern Sea Industrial Building, FHIFRE BELMRAE
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
B R ZEBZE 2 3K 29-395%
RETERNE
SIEA2ZE R7IEALZE
Office Units A3801, 03, 05, 06, 08-10 and Medium-term land Office 100%
12, Block A, United Plaza, Futian District, use rights MAE
Shenzhen, the PRC oh 8 1t 3 (8
wh BRI T 4% 8 8 R K R R B AR B R
S5 BEISARIE 1
A3801, 03, 05, 06, 08%= 107112
Factory Nos. 5-6, 9 and 11 Medium-term land Factory and office 55.5%
No 66-68, Danxia Road, use rights BEERAE
Xiangshan Industry Zone, B+ pb {5 B A
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
BHNT B R TR T X E & F} 5 866-685%
& A5E6 - ORI E
3/F and 5/F of Dormitory Block No. 3 Medium-term land Dormitory 55.5%
No 66-68, Danxia Road, use rights BE
Xiangshan Industry Zone, o H £ A A
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
R BIDHT T & B0 Th R I B T2 B @ 25 BR66-6855%
HEANEEE =—RE=-MNELRE
A pier located at west port dike of Baiqu Port, Medium-term land Pier 100%
near No. 9 Xiaoshun Road, High-tech Zone, use rights 588
Jiangyin, Jiangsu Province, the PRC Fp B A 3 (3 A A

BT #F & TR2 = % @ & L BROsk 55
A & &7 79 B R A5 5R
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TO THE MEMBERS OF FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fountain
Set (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereafter
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 64 to 168, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly

prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow Tak Sing, Peter

Practising Certificate Number PO4659

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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RERsREMEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 & £2015F12A31R IFFE

2015 2014
20155 20144
Notes fifi ~ HK$'000 F&T HK$'000 F% T
Revenue EER 6 6,653,051 6,891,133
Cost of sales & A (5,845,406) (6,176,316)
Gross profit EF 807,645 714,817
Other revenue =N 57,492 78,672
Other gains and losses Hap e KB 1B (26,496) (26,201)
Distribution and selling expenses DN IEEER (191,745) (171,917)
Administrative expenses 1THE A (469,362) (440,515)
Finance costs L= DN 7 (26,166) (34,983)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR ZTERas 39 = 4,694
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate Bl —MBERR 2
&R, (E8) 17 839 (738)
Profit before taxation BRFE AT B R 152,207 123,829
Income tax expense FTiSHi s 8 (24,133) (28,068)
Profit for the year EFEERT 9 128,074 95,761
Profit for the year attributable to: EERFERN:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE PN 99,860 90,590
Non-controlling interests FEE AR 2 28,214 5,171
128,074 95,761
HK cents E1l HK cents &l
Earnings per share B2 H
— Basic —HK 12 8.3 7.5
— Diluted —#E 12 8.3 7.5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REBRERAMEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 # %2015 12HA31H L&

2015 2014
20154 20144
Notes K1 HK$'000 F% T HK$'000 F %

Profit for the year EEERF 9 128,074 95,761

Other comprehensive income, net of tax Hth 2 E UL

(RMBRFIE)
ltems that may be reclassified HgngeEsoEs
subsequently to profit or loss: BmsEE
Net gain arising on revaluation of FREMAIHEEE
available-for-sale financial assets TREEEEL
during the year W FE 426 -
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations EH Z%E (10,288) (2,286)
Reclassification adjustment of HE—EH B AR
translation reserve upon disposal of EREE
a subsidiary B OERAE 39 - (1,435)
Other comprehensive expense REFEHMZEAX
for the year (9,862) (3,721)
Total comprehensive income EFEEXERELE
for the year 118,212 92,040

Total comprehensive income for the year E{i 2 FE2EWKFH

attributable to: WiE:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE Z =N 94,368 88,125
Non-controlling interests IEE RS 23,844 3,915

118,212 92,040
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B MR R 3R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 #2015 12H31H

At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014

R2015%12831H R2014512A31H
Notes izt HK$'000 T HK$000 T
Non-current assets FRBEE

Investment properties REME 13 74,551 55,004
Property, plant and equipment ES YT 14 1,412,120 1,520,174
Prepaid lease payments — non-current portion BRNEERE-FERBHN 15 102,020 104,763
Other intangible assets EwEREE 16 24,888 27,646
Interest in an associate R—EEERA 2 ER 17 16,305 15,466
Investment in life insurance policies ASRBRREZKE 19 38,345 37,850
Deferred tax assets BIERBEE 18 39,721 28,204
1,707,950 1,789,197

Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 20 1,410,330 1,301,897
Trade and bills receivables EERZEEYNGE 21 1,313,533 1,387,513
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BB e REMENGUE 22 116,765 124,419
Prepaid lease payments - current portion BRNEERE-REBHH 15 2,606 2,610
Tax recoverable A e R A 2,104 2,573
Restricted bank deposits RREIRITER 24 7,043 -
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 24 183,917 509,513
Bank balances and cash BITEBRRRSE 24 686,306 448011
3,722,604 3,776,536

Current liabilities REBREE
Trade and bills payables EERZEEMNTE 25 851,477 801,396
Other payables and accruals HtERRERETER 26 343,499 269,688
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders YT e 27 80,100 80,100
Amount due to an associate R—REBEDRHIE 27 7,080 -
Deferred income - current portion BIEWRA - REEH 28 1,458 1,458
Derivative financial instruments fTEERMIA 23 = 1,686
Tax payable EAFIE 31,376 17,338
Bank and other borrowings — due within one year ~ SRfT R EMEE - —FRE|H 29 494,619 784,831
Bank overdrafts BITEX 29 = 1,439
1,809,609 1,957,936
Net current assets TBEEFE 1,912,995 1,818,600
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERABER 3,620,945 3,607,797
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 720155 12H31H

At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014

M2015%12A31H R2014%12A31H
Notes fifi# HK$'000 & HK$000 %7
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income — non-current portion BEEWA—EREDH 28 60,760 62,218
Bank and other borrowings — due after one year BOREMEE-—FRIH 29 159,225 213,669
Deferred tax liabilities BEVEEE 18 6,204 6,287
226,189 282,174
Net assets EEFE 3,394,756 3,325,623
Capital and reserves EXRfEE
Share capital A 30 865,716 862,211
Other reserves Hib e 2,364,829 2,320,317
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ANBHEE AEHES 3,230,545 3,182,528
Non-controlling interests ERi T 164,211 143,095
Total equity ERAE 3,394,756 3,325,623

The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 168 were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2016 and

are signed on its behalf by:

ZHAO Yao

Fich
Director

EFE

=

HA Kam On, Victor
Bz
Director

BEF

F6AT 168 A AR A MR B 120163 H18H
HEFSBEBLZEEN Xh TIEEFRRE
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CONSOHDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MEEZEHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 & £2015F12A31R IFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRREAES
Capital  Investment Share Non-
Share Share redemption revaluation  Translation options  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves earmnings Total interests  Total equity
EXEE REER
BEx  RGEE 1 RE ELRE BRERE ZTRE REER BE FRREZ BEEE
HK$000 — HK$000  HK$OOD — HK$OOD  HK$OOD  HK$O00  HK$OO0  HK$DOO  HK$OOO  HK$OOO  HK$OO0
FHET FHET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note)
(frit)
At 1 January 2014 R2014%1A18 240,609 621,392 210 - (33,047) 13,586 80,179 2194291 3,117,220 161,427 3278647
Exchange differences arisingon ~ BEENERELZ

translation of foreign operations ~ EHE%E - - - - (1,030) - - - (1,030) (1,256) (2,286)
Reclassification adjustment of HE-FNERRE

translation reserve EXGEIENIBAR

upon disposal of a subsidiary (H1#39)

(Note 39) - - - - (1,435) - - - (1,435) - (1,435)
Profit for the year REEEA - - - - - - - 90,590 90,590 5,171 95,761
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ RFE2ME (F%)/

income for the year WmaE - - - - (2,465) - - 90,590 88,125 3915 92,040
Transfer upon abolition of 20143 A3R B R 7

nominal value of shares AERETEEGERER .

and capital redemption reserve 538 (#/3230)

on 3 March 2014 (Note 30) 621,602 (621,392 (210) - - - - - - - -
Equity-settled share-based NEREENRND A

payments S AT - - - - - 1,244 - - 1,244 - 1,244
Dividend recognised as distribution EEAANEZKE - - - - - - - (24,061)  (24,061) - (24,061)
Transfer from statutory reserves to ~ F /A R EHEZE

retained earnings BEERH - - - - - - (19) 19 - - -
Dividends paid to non- BRARETHERRE

controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - (22,247) (22,247)
At 31 December 2014 2014F 125318 862,211 - - - (35,512) 14,830 80,160 2,260,839 3,182,528 143,09 3,325,623
Exchange differences arisingon ~ REBHNERELZ

tranlation of foreign operations ~ ERZE - - - - (5918) - = - (5,918) (4370)  (10,288)
Net gain arising on revaluation of ~ FREF A HE

available-for sale financial assets £ BEEEEL

during the year WaEE - - - 426 - - - - 426 - 426
Profit for the year =FERM = = = - - - - 99,360 99,360 28214 128,074
Total comprehensive income/ REE2EME/

(expense) for the year (Hx) e = = = 426 (5918) - = 99,860 94,368 23844 118212
Equity-settled share-based NEREENRND A

payments reverse EiE 2 A5ER - - - - - (546) - - (546) - (546)
Dividend recognised as distribution BEZ A TKZ K E - - - - - - - (48,201)  (48,201) - (48,201)
Transfer from retained eamingsto A EFRFIARERE

investment revaluation reseve  EfEEERETRE

and statutory reserves - - - 1,805 - - 17,254 (19,059) - - -
Transfer from share options HEREREIRR

reserve to retained eamings BRET - - - - - (5,716) - 5716 - - -
Dividends paid to non- BRRETHERRE

controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - (2,728) (2,728)
Exercise of share options T RE 3,505 = - - - (1,109) - - 23% - 23%
At 31 December 2015 12015F 12318 865,716 - - 2,231 (41,430) 7,459 97414 2299155 3,230,545 164211 3,394,756

Note: The statutory reserves represent the appropriation of certain percentages of profit

Hiet: AERBIEETETEARLNE (THE]) AHE

after taxation of certain subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
as recommended by the directors of those subsidiaries as reported under the
PRC statutory financial statements. According to the provision of the articles of
association of the subsidiaries, the statutory reserves shall only be used for making up
losses, capitalisation into share capital, expansion of the relevant subsidiary’s operation
and for the welfare of the subsidiary’s staff and workers.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 # %2015 12H31H tF &

2015 2014
20155 20144
Note Biit HK$'000 & T HK$'000 F %71
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEBAMSNRERE
Profit before taxation BRI & A 152,207 123,829
Adjustments for: A
Compensation income for factory demolishment BERE 2 BEERA - (8,930)
Government grants BHEa (3,739) (7,349)
Amortisation of deferred income ER—M A (1,458) (1,458)
Depreciation of investment properties BEMEZNE 4,049 2,198
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment MmE BERBEINE 190,128 202,084
Amortisation of other intangible assets HhBYEE 2 & 3,246 3,133
Equity-settled share-based payments DESEERD BERE
(reverse)/expense MF(Bm),/ X (546) 1,244
Finance costs BMERA 26,166 34,983
Interest income FBMA (8,324) (17,903)
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, PE/EEDE BER
plant and equipment and RERENBEREL
prepaid lease payments BE 5,161 2,187
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRR BN 39 = (4,694)
Share of (profit)/loss of an associate il gl il A=/NG|
(&BH) /B (839) 738
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) on trade and &% R EEEWFIEZ
bills receivables, net WMEBRLER
(#m)FE 25,159 (2,935)
Impairment loss recognised on other receivables R AEMERIEZ
mEEX 1,665 -
Release of prepaid lease payments BRAEFEE D 2,610 2,609
Operating profit before working capital changes HEASEHH 2 ERT 395,485 329,736
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BEZ M,/ Bb (110,598) 334,662
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables & ¥ R EHEERFIE L
"/ (Em) 29,675 (123,386)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits BERE Re kA
and other receivables JEU R TE 2 > 7,631 18,716
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables EENERRNFTEL
#m,/ i) 68,133 (196,632)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals ~ EftENFEREFER
#m,/ i) 75,041 (57,258)
Increase in amount due to an associate R — [ & N B FIEE M 7,080 -
Cash generated from operations BEMGZRE 472,447 305,838
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREBHEH (1,308) (2,718)
Overseas tax paid BRENHIE (19,914) (5,816)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEFEAMESHNRLSTE 451,225 297,304
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HmEHRERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 # £2015%F12H31HItFE
2015 2014
2015% 2014F
Notes fifi# HK$'000 & HK$'000 F %71
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEBAMENREFE 451,225 297,304
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REBEFMEBNEESHRE
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARMEHE 39 = 23,573
Interest received BEUF 8 8,279 17861
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME BERFER
equipment and prepaid lease payments BABEREMEHE 2,413 4,708
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME HERZE 4 (117,811) (128,754)
Additions of prepaid lease payments BAHERIELEM (23) -
Purchase of other intangible assets BEEMBVAE 16 (488) (495)
Net mavement in derivative financial instruments TEERIANEEFE (1,686) 15,856
Increase in restricted bank deposits ZRAIRITE LM (7,043) -
Compensation income for factory BB E i 2 B ERA
demolishment received - 8,930
Government grants received B Wk T #8 B 3,739 7,349
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REBEFMANREFE (112,620) (50,972)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~~ BLEEEFENASHE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BRETREMEE (2,019,757) (2,536,449)
Interest paid BAFE (28,667) (33,502)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders EOLESERETED (2,728) (22,247)
Dividends paid EREE (48,201) (24,061)
Proceeds from exercise of share options TEBRERSZE 2,396 -
New bank and other borrowings raised HEERTREMEER 1,676,372 2,177,536
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEBEEMANREFE (420,585) (438,723)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BeRERBREEEN
CASH EQUIVALENTS B RE (81,980) (192,391)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REFERRBNESK
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ZEBEER 956,085 1,149,963
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON EX2BHUBREK
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ZEBEEBEENYE (3,882) (1,487)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REFERERNREER
AT END OF THE YEAR ZRELER 870,223 956,085
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF BEeRERRLEALEREN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 2T
Short-term bank deposits RHRITEX 183,917 509,513
Bank balances and cash RITEHRKERE 686,306 448011
Bank overdrafts RITEX - (1,439)
870,223 956,085
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information

to the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which

is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34.

The directors consider its immediate parent is Chinatex Yieldfull
Investments Co., Ltd. and ultimate parent is Chinatex Corporation, a state-
owned enterprise under the direct supervision and administration of,
and is beneficially owned by, the State-owned Assets Supervision and

Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — first effective on 1
January 2015

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19
(2011)

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

Contributions

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact on the Group’s

financial statements.

e MWK
31 December 2015 2015%12H31H
1. N
RRBREBBIMA IO ARER A AIMHERK
MREBBERSMERAR ([BRAT]) £
RABIN MR &+ ZE BN AR F
WMARER A -

R R TIAB TR BT AR D RIK 8
B o
EFXrZHBEAR

RRAR T —EREZERRATF] &y

T E2EBEII N E34A -

all

EERS EEEBRARATHAEEREARR
A MESASARRTEPHERANR —KH
TEEBEEEEELEEEELZEREREEN
ERUARERER  BEELE-

2. BB RBUKBEER ([HEH
BHREER])

(a) BRMFNE]IEFT 2 EBMBHRE
AR -2015F 1 A1H B IR EM

B BImE %A 2010F £2012F HE 2
(BFTA) FEYH

BAIBREER 2011 Z2013F A 2
(B3TA) EEME

BEGMERNFEIN . FEREME REHR
EETA (20114 )

RAZEEITAHAEENT ERRLBEEAY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

31 December 2015 2015%12A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s
financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle!

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative!

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation?
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements!
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in

Joint Operations!

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
3 Effective date is deferred
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle
The amendments issued under the annual improvements process make
small, non-urgent changes to a number of standards where they are

currently unclear.

Amendment to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative
The amendments are designed to encourage entities to use judgment in
the application of HKAS 1 when considering the layout and content of their

financial statements.

An entity’s share of other comprehensive income from equity accounted
interests in associates and joint ventures will be split between those items
that will and will not be reclassified to profit or loss, and presented in

aggregate as a single line item within those two groups.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of a revenue-based
depreciation method for items of property, plant and equipment. The
amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for intangible assets. This
presumption can be rebutted if either the intangible asset is expressed as
a measure of revenue or revenue and the consumption of the economic

benefits of the intangible asset are highly correlated.

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity method in accounting
for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its

separate financial statements.

REMBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015412H31H
2. KMBRMBRELER ([FERM
HHmEER]) (F)
(b) BMEMIEMREB AT
P HRELER (F)
2012 F2014F AR 2 FEHE
RBFEUSCERFRMZEFTHZEE AR TS

BEEBEERFEIR T - TBHE
EEE A EREIR BT AEESRE
BEMBRE 2MBREATKAGELS
FEURZEM-

A

pEE
sHoea

EREERENBE QT NEE R RIREEERD
fRzigazEtezERaE SRS ABERTE
BN BRERGac%FEE  INZMEHRRA
HRAERE-HBZS-

3]

BB ERFIHREEBETEREI8HK 2
A - TER M EET LR EE
BEGHEAFIOHRMNEFTELERIME #
REBEBAKRASERNINE L - BB
RERFIBHE ZEFTASI AR AR HEB N KRR A
Wesd B EERIEN R EEE - ZBR

NTREEREER: EREEER KGR ES
sk e BRI B E BN R WA FE S E B
B -

EiERE27HZETE - B BHEL
%
BBREI AT EBESENE LI ERE P A
HEGEERHBAR G E QR RBEARZ
BE -
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e BRI

31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and that have contractual
terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash
flow characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at FVTOCI if the objective of the entity’s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets.
Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and

equity instruments are measured at FVTPL.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for all financial
assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS
39 and new general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to

better reflect their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for

derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be recognised when
an entity sells or contributes assets to its associate or joint venture. When
the transaction involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated

investors’ interests in the joint venture or associate.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 — Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations

The amendments require an entity to apply all of the principles of HKFRS 3
Business Combinations when it acquires an interest in a joint operation that
constitutes a business as defined in that standard. The principles of HKFRS
3 are also applied upon the formation of a joint operation if an existing
business as defined in that standard is contributed by at least one of the

parties.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition framework. The
core principle of the framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS

11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

REPBBMRME
31 December 2015 2015%12H31H
2. RMEBMBREER ([FEY
BEwEEA]) (&)
(b) BEREMEMKRERZIT 4L
e mEER (&)
BB BHREEREIOREREESERE28%
RIEFTF - REZHRBENARESERAZH
HWEELELTE
BEEIREEBMAEBEARNAGERARHE
FIANEER B TERZWNEHEERE-E
RGFEh—HER AARRE2BMEHEE-
Rz 8XSFERTHER-BEBNEE  AER
HRTAEAREENESERRABE AR 2R
AU R

EBHBHREEREIIRZIETE - KESERE
BB S EE

FRETERBERRNKRBALELER (BXE
BUBREENEIN [ EBAH] AE2ER)
FBERA 2R A - Wk BRI R ENIRE XH D
KBRZAZBEBNEL RN NEEBY

BHREEMNFEIRZRAUNTNK LA EEBET
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e BRI

31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)
HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to revenue

recognition:

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation
° Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance obligation is

satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue related topics
that may change the current approach taken under HKFRS. The standard
also significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative disclosures

related to revenue.

The directors of the Group anticipate that the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

(c) New Companies Ordinance provisions relating to the
preparation of financial statements

The provisions of the new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, in relation to the

preparation of financial statements will apply to the Company in this year.

The directors consider that there is no impact on the Group’s financial
position or performance, however the new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622,
impacts on the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. For example, the statement of financial position of the Company
is now presented in the notes to the financial statements rather than as a
primary statement and related notes to the statement of financial position of

the Company are generally no longer presented.
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EERE(EE)AREE 20]15FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the
preparation of financial statements. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis

except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which

is also the functional currency of the Company.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.
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Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which

case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration

classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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EERE(EE)AREE 20]15FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTAT%MENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from business combinations
whose acquisition dates preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group
first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance with
the transition requirements in the standard. Such balances are not adjusted
upon first application of the standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of
such consideration are treated as adjustments to the cost of these business

combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's interest and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant

assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results in those non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise
control. The Company controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power to
affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements

of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.

(c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the

investee but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby they are
initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted
for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net
assets except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the associate

are not recognised unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests
in the associate. The investor's share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of
the associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of

the asset transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in

the same way as other non-financial assets.
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EERE(EE)AREE 20]15FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for

administrative purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to
write off the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The useful life, residual value and depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting

period.

An investment property is realisable upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the

period in which the item is realisable.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress and freehold land) are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and

the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial period in

which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

31 December 2015 2015 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment (other than construction in progress and freehold land)
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful

lives are as follows:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of 2% — 4.5% or period of
the lease term

10% - 33%

10% - 20%

20% — 30%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

Construction in progress Nil

Freehold land is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost
comprises direct costs of construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation. Capitalisation of
these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of construction in

progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.
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EERE(EE)AREE 20]15FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease payments
provided during the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction are carried
at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the

manner intended by management).

(f) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the

leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are

consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

31 December 2015 2015 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at the

inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line

basis.

(h) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

(i) Intangible assets

(i) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost less accumulated

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful lives as
follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation expense is recognised
in profit or loss and included in administrative expenses.

Software Shorter of 10% — 20% or period of the contract term

84

4, TESFHEE (&)
ME L1 RIEF
HWHERE L EEFHN MAKREEEREA
BB B REPTIT 2 4B KRR 1 B K% [ 3R 2
BETAEENTE BYLFHEERERUB
SEERENDE-ARBME  KEBREMNK (L
BEM—RBENK) REERBE L BT
iz MEESOARY X FEELFIR L EE
FE DR

WHEMNKEN FELER AIZI /L EHENH
iﬂ%ﬁFTéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%

BRI A B AR R B8 -
(h 5&
FEMBERARR  HEERARTERFE

RBREEER - KA BREABERBEAA - BITRAR
Ko 1 B BCE B AT 3G MR T EE AR B LA A
Ao XA ASEAE St B G H - AT R IR ETE —
EHBIETNEFEEREFHEEMFNMGE
DN

() mEEE

(i) BEREE

B EEVHERAR BT 8 R 2R EER X
TR

B TIABBORIR AT AT B HIRHR A - 1
MEAERFMZ BT EESRRAHRBEMR

FHRERKYIM - # 35 & AN B R A RER Mt
ATBER-
g 10%—20% A KFH (AREE RE)



EERE(EE)AREE 20]15FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment when there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing

their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount;
however, the carrying amount should not be increased above the lower of its
recoverable amount and the carrying amount that would have resulted had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. All reversals
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income immediately.

(j) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statements of
financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (i.e. derivative financial instruments) are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2015 2015 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables,

available-for-sale financial assets and derivative financial instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries,
bank deposits and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see

accounting policy on impairment of loans and receivables below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not included in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets (including investment in
life insurance policies) are carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments, which are

recognised in profit or loss.
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EERE(EE)AREE 2015FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified

impairment losses.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after

the initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or breach
of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because

of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the respective credit period and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.
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31 December 2015 2015 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated

future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit

or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the

amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective evidence of
impairment, the amount of the loss is removed from equity and recognised

in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt investments are
subsequently reversed in profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of
the investments can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of impairment loss.
For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in fair value

subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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EERE(EE)AREE 2015FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss is not reversed.

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group entity after deducting all of its liabilities. The
Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into derivative financial

instruments and other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or,

where appropriate, a shorter period.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other payables,
amounts due to subsidiaries/non-controlling shareholders, bank and other
borrowings and bank overdrafts are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, came into operation on
3 March 2014. Under the Ordinance shares of the Company do not have a
nominal value. Consideration received or receivable for the issue of shares
on or after 3 March 2014 is credited to share capital. Commissions and
expenses are allowed to be deducted from share capital under s.148 and
s.149 of the Ordinance.
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31 December 2015 2015 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately. Derivative financial instruments not held primarily
for trading purposes are classified as non-current assets or liabilities when

the remaining maturity of the instruments is more than one year.

(iv) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the

financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash
and bank overdrafts are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within one year when acquired, which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.
For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial position, cash

and cash equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits, bank balances

and cash and bank overdrafts which are not restricted as to use.

90

4. TESFEEK (&)
() &®MIAE)
Giii) PTEEMITA

{/TEEI/E(EA{/T/EEI/E\‘DIZ R E %E%)]%/F%?/D\EFE
BEER EERREHREBATEEENHZ-
HEEFENRENRREREARR - 2/FAL

FETEEEERBNITES R ITANGRTIIHE
BRE—F ANBRIFRDEEXEE-

(iv) AR

ENEERDBERENENERNUESHE
ECBRELASECHERSREERGERNS

REbp R RO HRER  SREEBR LR -

RNEERIEREREER ZEEMKAER
B BN 8 W AR AB B B 0 EL A 2 T W i AR S Y
ERZFTZ 2FFABNEMNZESERERA
R o

ERMABESERABENTANEETERR U
JERE R IR - RILERN SR B ENREE
HENMENHRENZRSERRRARER -

k) ReFBEEFREH
pEARSRERTE ReRRLEREAR
ERBRTER RITEBRERS RIRITEXY
ZEELHNSHEARAME BFHEREY
— R IR —FREIE - AR BREB WA
REMB TR RERES

RGP BRRERME B2 kReEREBEER
EREBRITER RITERERE RRTEX
HABETZES -



EERE(EE)AREE 2015FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(I)  Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the

grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the

useful lives of the related assets.

(m) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present

value of those cash flows (where the effect is material).

A provision for restructuring is recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position on conditions that the Group has a detailed formal plan
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that the restructuring
will be carried out, by starting to implement that plan or by announcing its

main features to those affected by it.
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31 December 2015 2015 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of the following assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss

previously recognised no longer exist or may have decreased:

° investment properties;

o property, plant and equipment;
° prepaid lease payments;

. other intangible assets; and

o interest in an associate;

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate the reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the asset.
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EERE(EE)FAREE 2015FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(0) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of returns, discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered

and title has passed, at which date the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can

be measured reliably.

Rental income under operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can

be measured reliably.

maMBRRmE
31 December 2015 2015412 H31H
4, TESFHEE (&)
) HAHERR
WARE W ERRENRFEEE  THERA
BERBBEPE LS mRIEHIRFE R FIE
BIMOGRERE M HERANIE-

ERHERARERVTEREARB I RER
BIT IR EZER 2 B

s AREEHKEMBERIEARRKDRE
TE
s AEEVERYE -REZERAWIEER
AR A S BRI B

01T i

ot

F

o
‘ﬂ]]ﬂﬁ

#
Z

L]
EH
iy

fOm

&= g
. R GH

-
K
&
\%‘\5‘(

"]
B R

s
=
E'\l
o

S

o3
Al

H

K«

v

ol

2 MAA

i

EI

Bl

g
ap
&

s

N
/I

juni

&
s FAHXSELASEELZKRAGEMA A

o

feln

LEHEZHSWARERBAEFHINBERLRE

:7&_"\0

TREENFBWATIRE BRI s8R AR E
B - B A TR ] S AT 8 T IARER -

93



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

31 December 2015 2015 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

(g) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years/periods and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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EERE(EE)FAREE 2015FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill
and recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate tax
rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of
these investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,

rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.
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31 December 2015 2015 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes

are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

(r) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (“foreign currencies”) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on

the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.
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EERE(EE)FAREE 2015FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income

and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences
recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or

loss on disposal.

(s) Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination
benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the year

when the employees render the related service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when the services are rendered by the

employees.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises

restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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31 December 2015 2015 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(t) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share

options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in

profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share options reserve will be credited to share capital.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share

options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

(u) Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the

Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the

Company’s parent.
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EERE(EE)FAREE 2015FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may
be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(ii)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such as technical
or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production, or from a change in the market demand for the product or
service output of the asset expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar
limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset
is based on the experience of the Group with similar assets that are used
in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful
lives and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and equipment
are difference from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each financial year end date based on changes in

circumstances.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are different from

expected, a material impairment or reversal may arise.

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
and obsolete merchandise. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a market price that is lower than its carrying amount, the
Group estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for
inventories. If the market price of inventories of the Group becomes lower
than its carrying amount subsequently, an additional allowance may be

required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The board of directors of the Company, i.e. the chief operating decision
maker, regularly reviews the operating results and financial information
based on distinct geographical areas of location of customers, including
Hong Kong (place of domicile of the Group), the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), Taiwan, Korea, Sri Lanka, America, Europe and Others (i.e.
representing other geographical locations mainly Singapore, Vietham and
Macau). All of these geographical areas are operating segments except

“Others” which is an aggregation of operating segments.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit from the
production and sales of dyed fabrics, sewing threads, yarns and garments

and results by reportable segment for the year.

REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

6. EXERIEER

ARREEE (MXTEL2ERRE)RBEPH
iR RIS EE MBS RERTE
B BRER (FREMEL)  PEARKM
B (] 5& BE HBHR XM BUMN
KEME (A bR E T 2AMINE -
MEKRM) -FAZSHENE AL ESE M
[Hfpiple | | SERa 2 EE&nR-

NTAAEEREFEREBEREESH #
A WRRREATRRDBE D Z2EEXEREA
MIAREEEZ DHT

2015 20154
Segment
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others total  Eliminations Consolidated
& HE e BE  HEEF EiM BN HEME 2EAE e &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET FET FET TET TET FET FET TET
Revenue BX8
External sales HNMEE 1,430,114 1,194,748 770,123 1,059,345 814,559 390,323 81,006 912,833 6,653,051 - 6,653,051
Inter-segment sales (ofe) ~ HREHE
() 4,774,710 2,677,060 - - 421,331 72,388 - 172,293 8,117,782 (8,117,782) =
Total segment revenue DHEEBLE 6,204,824 3,871,808 770,123 1,059,345 1,235,890 462,711 81,006 1,085126 14,770,833 (8,117,782) 6,653,051
Results Ed
Segment profit DEBA 123,890 90,677 68,940 96,395 92,648 30,808 7,493 83,865 594,716
Interest income FIEBA 8,324
Unallocated income RABMA 8,815
Depreciation and REREH
amortisation (200,033)
Other unallocated HRAEL T
expenses (234,288)
Finance costs BERK (26,166)
Share of profit of an associate & {f —EH 41 &
ZBF 839
Profit before taxation BHRIEF 152,207
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31 December 2015 2015 12H31H
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXBERSEER (&)
(Continued)
2014 20144
Segment
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe QOthers total  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
B HE A %E  HERT M B HtE  SE8E E3fc) S48
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FHET FET FET FET
Revenue B8 1494114 1,321,674 857,416 1,094,666 686,119 420,585 150,703 865,856 6,891,133 - 689,133
External sales HIMAE
Inter-segment sales (o)~ HEEHE
(W) 4944412 2531113 - - 386,361 112,848 - 176,289 8151,023  (8,151,023) -
Total segment revenue DEEEBLE 6438526 3,852,787 857416 1094666 1,072,480 533,433 150,703 1,042,145 15042156  (8151,023) 6,891,133
Results B3
Segment profit PEEA 133,252 87,660 74,915 96,269 42,741 37,038 13,196 76,499 561,570
Interest income FIEBA 17,903
Unallocated income RAERA 2917
Depreciation and REREH
amortisation (210,024)
Other unallocated HiprAEXH
expenses (217,510)
Finance costs BEMRK (34,983)
Gain on disposal of HENBRAZ
subsidiaries sl 4,694
Share of loss of an associate (G —FBE AR
BB (738)
Profit before taxation BB AR 123,829

Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at price with reference to the prevailing market rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs and other expenses (including non-production related
employee benefits expenses, directors’ emoluments, bank charges, etc.),
depreciation and amortisation, interest income, loss on disposal/written-off
of property, plant and equipment, net gain/(loss) from derivative financial
instruments, finance costs, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, etc.. This is the
measure reported to the board of directors of the Company for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No analysis on segment
assets and liabilities is disclosed as it is not presented to the board of

directors of the Company.

REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

6. EXERIBEEH (K)

AERMO B G BER AN FAL 2 A EE g5
BEMAR - BB IS BRREROBF
ERLEFAPRITBERAREMER (BRI
HAEERZRERMNFAX EEME RITER
%) FEREH FMERA - HE GIHEME K

BRERBZER TEERMIAZKE (B1E)
FE BERARLERNBRAR ZMEREE-
W RERDELEMFHEMAARREESE
B EE-HOBPEERBBELRBIEEONE
B EAZENEARARREEGZY) -

Other segment information HihnEEas
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit: EREAGENERM 25
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others  Consolidated
£ PE ag BE  HERF EN BN HA®E S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEn FET FET FEr AT FET FET
2015 20155
Impairment loss (reversed)/ % £ R Z 15 el
recognised on tradeand ~ FEBZHERK
bills receivables, net (BR) /B2 3E 13,267 10,468 420 418 444 (38) (1) 181 25,159
2014 20145F
Impairment loss (reversed)/ 4 £ R Z 15l
recognised on trade and A HEEL
bills receivables, net (BE)/BRFE 39 (150) (3,131) 71 (410) 31 (1) 616 (2,935)
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31 December 2015 2015%12A31H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue from the Group’s products

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers

by products:

AEEERMCERS
ATRARERESAEBRENBESLETEZ
HH -

2015 2014
2015% 2014F
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F/& T

Production and sales of dyed fabrics, sewing threads HEREECH BAOGRY
and yarns 5,626,076 5,918,787
Production and sales of garments REREERK 1,026,975 972,346
6,653,051 6,891,133
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of the Group’s non-

current assets (note) at the end of the reporting period:

e

BT

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

6. EXERIEEN (K

b 15 &

B)

MIMEME FXEBZIERBEE (e It

gz :

At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014

M2015%12A31H R2014F12H31H

HK$'000 & T HK$000 F/& T

The PRC F 1,427,220 1,501,882
Hong Kong ak 42,903 46,745
America EM 87 134
Sri Lanka B R 159,465 173,598
Others Hibi R 209 784
1,629,884 1,723,143

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and investment in life insurance

policies.

Information about major customers

No revenue from individual customer contributed over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31

December 2014.

Wit ERBDEETREECHNBEEERASRBRRE

A&

BRITERFZEH

B Z2015F12A31H ILF E R B E2014F12A
BIALEFE RAEMEMNEFZEXRBERATEE

R EEBIO% o

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BAERAK
2015 2014
2015% 2014F
HK$'000 F %7 HK$000 T/
Finance costs on: BERTE:
Bank and other borrowings wholly repayable BROFANZHEEZRTR
within five years Hifg g 26,166 34,983
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31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

8. FrEBix ik

2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$'000 ¥ HK$000 F/& T
Current tax; REEFIE:
Hong Kong N 4,449 278
The PRC F 20,307 12,111
Other jurisdictions Bt Rk E 11,421 4,758
36,177 17,147
(Over)/under provision in prior years: BAFE (BEEE) HBETL:
Hong Kong BE (48) (20)
The PRC i 167 (330)
Other jurisdictions HipelEnE (568) 1,230
(449) 830
35,728 18,027
Deferred tax (note 18): EIERIE (f15E18) -
Hong Kong N 2 (133)
The PRC H (11,421) 5,795
Other jurisdictions Hip ez (176) 4,379
(11,595) 10,041
24,133 28,068

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (31 December 2014: 16.5%)

of the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)

and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax rate of the PRC

subsidiaries is 25%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Sri Lanka, the profit
generated from a subsidiary of the Company is entitled to exemption from
the Sri Lanka income tax until April 2014. Since then, the tax rate of Sri

Lanka income tax is 12%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in

the respective jurisdictions.

Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 18.

RE B BmMRME
31 December 2015 2015%12H31H
8. FiEHxH (&)
RIZHMEBM KA ERIER BARE]—H
MBARMMEL BN AT ERE T R RASH
HE014F4A BRI 1% MERRZAEHHK
EH12% °

HibFRIE 2 BOERNAME B AAEER
ZRIEHE

BRBRLEHRBZFBHNMELS

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxaton RFERGEBZIREMEEKRAROBES H
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive — E2RR R AT & FIH S BRI T
income as follows:
2015 2014
2015% 20145
HK$'000 F# 7 HK$000 /&
Profit before taxation BRI & A 152,207 123,829
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits or losses REBRZHRBRANERZ
in the jurisdiction concerned EHHEFENTE 13,303 22,908
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose ERTENROHBYE 4,970 6,796
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose WABERBNR B2 (2,435) (5,239)
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFE (REERE) /B E‘TE (449) 830
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised HEBBREERANTETE 13,606 19,575
Tax effect of other deferred tax not recognised HiEEREAGRROTR B E 5,139 1,006
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised ERBEREERNTIESE (8,136) (4,106)
Utilisation of other deferred tax previously not recognised & B @1 KRR M A i E T H 18 (1,653) (12,199)
Effect on opening deferred tax balances resulting ERANEENHECRERTNES IV E
from an increase in applicable tax rate (211) -
Deferred tax provided/(reversed) on withholding tax on LI B A RENRIELD
overseas subsidiaries EEHERE/ (&) 4 (1,559)
Others Hity () 6
Tax charge for the year REEREZ L 24,133 28,068

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year decreased significantly
which is caused by changes in profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in

respective countries they are operating.

EFEENEFHEARETBRE THRIBRAKE
ZHBARRNKEREMESEZBNENED
CIEES
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REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

9. REEEN

2015 2014
20155 20145
HK$'000 ¥ HK$000 T/
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: REERMEMATIEE
Auditors' remuneration ZERh 2 & 2,908 3,044
Cost of inventories sold (note /) FEEERA (Hiti) 5,845,406 6,176,316
Depreciation of investment properties (note 13) RENEZHE (H17213) 4,049 2,198
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 14) % B R RE 2 ITE (Hi714) 190,128 202,084
Employee costs (including directors’ emoluments BERA
set out in note 10) (REFRMFIOZEZHE) 988,758 953,404
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, HE/EENE BREREER
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments # BRAETIEEE 5,161 2,187
Net exchange losses * [ 5 E 3B = 3212
Net lass from derivative financial instruments # @TE%%@I%ZE% F{E = 23,737
Impairment loss recognised on trade ERAEEREREWTIEZ
and bills receivables, net # AEBKFE 25,159 -
Impairment loss recognised on other receivables * TR A E M EYGRIE 2 RER X 1,665 -
Release of prepaid lease payments BRNHEFEE N 2,610 2,609
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 16) BB EE B (Witie) 3,246 3,133
and after crediting: REFATIIEE
Amortisation of deferred income* BB A 55 1,458 1,458
Interest income* BN 8,324 17,903
Net rental income from investment properties* RENENRSWAFE" 9,331 7,762
Net exchange gain * B 7 e 5B 5,441
Net gain from derivative financial instruments # TESBMIAZ MR FE 48 -
Impairment loss reversed on trade and bills receivables, netf % % & 215 e Yr 508 7 i {E 1B & B (B 3 E? - 2,935
Compensation income for factory demolishment* EEild 1O - 8,930
Government grants (note fi)* BISHaL (Bati) 3,739 7,349

Included in other revenue

# Included in other gains and losses

Note:

* BREAEMKIAR
# BEEEMKERERR

Biat

(i) Cost of inventories sold includes HK$1,684,468,000 (2014: HK$1,619,628,000)
of staff costs, depreciation, subcontracting fee, provision/(reversal) of write-down
of inventories and other manufacturing overheads which are also included in the

respective total amounts disclosed above for each of these types of expenses.

(i) Government grants mainly represent grants of HK$2,743,000 (2014: HK$5,696,000)
received from the PRC local government authority as subsidies to the Group for
acquiring certain property, plant and equipment for energy saving scheme and

environmental protection scheme implemented by the PRC local government.

There were no restrictions with the use of such government grants.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
mEN®

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’” emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the Ordinance) and the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap.

622G) (the Regulation) are as follows:

(a

EERE(EE)AREE 20]15FFH

"

STATEMENTS
e

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

10. EEREEMSEHR

) EEME

RIBEBRAED ($622F) (1&H])2E3831% K&
RE(WEEENHEER) R (F62268) (R
PREHEEHEOT -

2015 20154
HA Kam CHOW
On, YEN GONG ZHAO NG Kwok Wing Kin, YANG ZHANG CHEN YING
LI Lan Victor Gordon Zhengyi Yao Tung Anthony Shibin Chong Minghong Wei Total
X 8% BRES A1 i) 3 HER Ak BtE "B R EE L
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Tz FE7 FA7 FA7 FA7 TR FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT Tz
(note ) (note i) (note i) (note i)
(Hiti) (i) (i) (i)
Fees o . 250 20 150 . 250 200 . - . 00 120
Other emoluments e
Salaries and other benefts 4 RE{ER 180 - - 488 3,304 - - - = = = 3972
Discretionary bonuses* HiEgs - 100 - 100 1,017 - - - - - = 1217
Equity-settled share-based ~ MEREENRHA
payments 3 AGE - 433 145 - - - - - - = = 578
Retirement benefits scheme ~ R{KEFI3ElHE R
contribution - 12 - 2 18 - - - - - - 32
180 79 345 0 433 250 200 - - - 0 709
* The basis of discretionary bonus is based on the profitability of the Group. * BIEEEHEREEREBMERES -
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REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12A31H

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Annual Report 2015

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

10. EEREEMEEH (F)

@ E=M= (8)

2014 20144
HA CHOW
Kam On, YEN GONG ZHAO NG Kwok Wing Kin, YANG ZHANG
LILan Victor Gordon Zhengyi Yao Tung Anthony Shibin Chong Total
£ Bz BEH BitA H#IZ RER Rk it KB el
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FEL FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note i) (note ii)
(Hei) (Hyati)
Fees we - 188 200 200 - 250 200 200 - 1,238
Other emoluments Hinfe
Salaries and other benefits HoREMERN 2,846 5,658 - - 924 - - - - 9428
Equity-settled share-based IR EENRR B
payments EfZHR - 779 264 - - - - - - 1,043
Retirement benefits scheme
contribution RN B - 57 - - 9 - - - - 66
2846 6,682 464 200 933 250 200 200 N W
Note: it
(i) Madam Li Lan retired as Executive Director on 23 January 2015. (i) FTHLZER2015F1823BRIHITES-
(i) Mr. Yang Shibin resigned as Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 January 2015. iy GHBERER0I5F1AIHBITBIIERITES-
(i)~ Mr. Chen Minghong was appointed as Executive Director on 23 January 2015. (i) [RUEHEENR2015F123HEZTANITES -
(iv)  Mr. Ying Wei was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 January  (iv) [EELRAER2015F1B1AEZXABIIERITES-

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any director as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

of office. No directors waived any emoluments in the year.

1

2015.

10
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EERE(EE)AREE 20]15FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BERRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND 10. E=EREEMEER (&)

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEM=

The five highest paid employees included one (31 December 2014: two) HEMEMSZEEBIEIA (2014F12A318 :2
director, whose emoluments are set out in note (a) above. Emoluments of {i7) &% - EB & 515N Ll i 52 (a) - 82 T 4fL

the remaining four (31 December 2014: three) employees are as follows: (2014F12A318 3 ) EEMMES T

2015 2014
2015% 2014
HK$'000 & HK$'000 F %71
Salaries and other benefits HeREMET 13,763 21,851
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFIFHEIER 200 211
Discretionary bonuses Bi5Ee 2,726 -
Equity-settled share-based payments DEGEERN AR AR - 824
16,689 22,886

Their emoluments were within the following bands: WEZEBE N FAT4R :
2015 2014
2015% 2014F
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7t £3,000,000/& 7T 2 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,0017% 7t £4,000,0007% 71T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7T 25,000,000/ 1 - 1
HK$7,500,000 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,000/% 7t £8,000,000/ 7T 1 -

HK$15,000,000 to HK$15,500,000

15,000,000/ 7L £ 15,500,000/ 7T
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31 December 2015 2015%12A31H

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management were

within the following bands:

10. EEREEMEEH (F)

) mAEEEMNE
ENENEREREREZMEN FUTA
B

2015 2014
2015% 2014F
Below HK$1,000,000 »#1,000,0007% 7T 4 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017% 7T £3,000,0007% 71T - 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/ 7T 24,500,000/ 1T 1 -
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001/ 7T 27,000,000/ 7T - 1
11. DIVIDENDS 11. R &
2015 2014
2015% 20144
HK$'000 T&7 HK$000 F/& 7T
Dividend recognised as distribution during the year: REECRARADRZIBKE
2014 final dividend of HK4 cents 20145 K Hlk 8 RR4 AL
(2013 final dividend of HK2 cents) per share (2013F REARR B 27 4) 48,201 24,061

No interim dividend was paid or proposed for both years.

The final dividend of HK4 cents in respect of the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: HK4 cents) per share, amounting to approximately
HK$48,201,000 (2014: HK$48,201,000) in total, has been proposed by the
directors of the Company and is subject to the approval of the shareholders

at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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EERE(EE)AREE 20]15FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings and diluted earnings per share

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015412H31H
12. BREF
RRBEE ANEIEBRERRTN R EFRF TR
BTIBUEAE

2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$'000 F#7T HK$'000 F% T
Earnings 27
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company ~ #itEEREABRN LR AZRMNHFA 2
for the purposes of basic earnings and diluted AREHEAANEEREERT
earnings per share 99,860 90,590
2015 2014
2015% 2014F
Number of shares BAEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares WA EGREARFRAERNMAZ
for the purposes of basic earnings TRRMETSHEE
and diluted earnings per share 1,204,050,522 1,203,046,960

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014 does not assume the exercise of
the Company’s outstanding share options because the adjusted exercise
prices of those options calculated in accordance with HKAS 33 “Earnings
Per Share” are higher than the average market price of the shares for both

years.

HRIBIERE A G ERE335% [FREAT | 5tE
AARIERITEBRE EARTEESNRG
RREFE 2 FHHE HitA HE#E20156F12
A31R L FE R2014F 128310 L FE 2 T #
BRI ERRZSERECEITE-
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REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. REMWHE

HK$'000 T T

Cost
At 1 January 2014
Currency realignment

Reclassification from buildings

At 31 December 2014
Currency realignment

Reclassification from buildings

At 31 December 2015

Depreciation
At 1 January 2014
Currency realignment

Provided for the year

At 31 December 2014
Currency realignment

Provided for the year

At 31 December 2015

Carrying values

At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014
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201441 A1H
OB B R
e 12 8 ik

M2014412831H
SN E R
et 8 ik

2015412 A31H

neE
M2014171H
SNEEIE E TR
T FERE

2014512 H31H

SNETRE EER

EFERE

2015512 H31H

AREE
2015512 H31H

2014512 H31H

34,106
(354)
23,834

57,586
(1,975)
25,325

80,936

306
(12)
2,198

2,492
(156)
4,049

6,385

74,551

55,094
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group's investment properties consisted of leased properties and
leased pier as at 31 December 2015. (31 December 2014: The Group’s
investment properties consisted of leased properties). The fair value of the
Group's investment properties at 31 December 2015 was HK$193,965,000
(31 December 2014: HK$159,488,000). The fair value of leased properties
was HK$169,184,000 (31 December 2014: HK159,488,000) and the fair
value of leased pier was HK$24,781,000 (31 December 2014: Nil) which
have been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by Ascent Partners
Valuation Service Limited and RHL Appraisal Limited respectively, both are

independent property valuers.

The valuation of leased properties was determined by direct comparison
method and Depreciated Replacement Cost approach (31 December
2014: Income approach, direct comparison method and Depreciated
Replacement Cost approach). The change of valuation technique resulted
in a measurement that is equally or more representative of fair value in the

circumstances.

Direct comparison method is adopted where comparison based on prices
realised on actual sales of comparable properties is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, character and location are analysed and carefully
weighed against all the respective advantages and disadvantages of each

property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of market values.

Depreciated Replacement Cost approach requires an estimate of the new
replacement costs of the buildings and structures of the property from
which deductions are then made to allow for age, conditions, functional

obsolescence, etc.

Income approach is a technique in which the estimated stream of future
benefits may be enjoyed by reason of ownership, usually the anticipated or
projected earnings, is processed to indicate the amount measured through
capitalisation of net income or application of multiples derived from financial

analysis of similar type of properties.

REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

13. k&M * (&)

M2015F12A318 AEEMEEMERER
EWMERMETE (20144128310 : A& [
MBRENMEEREYNE) AEEREMER
2015912 A31H &) 1 F (B & £193.965,0007% 7T
(2014412 A31H : 159,488,000/ 7T ) - FAEW %
2 F (B 18 /5169,184,000/% 7T (2014412 A31
H :159,488,000/% t) R EMHHEMN N FEE S
24,781,000/ 7t (2014412 A31H : #&) » Jh 5
FH 98 7 W) 2 E AR A R E RS A B PR A B Kok F
TAEREMARDREITHEENESL -

HEMENGENREELBERITESERA
7% (2014512 A31H - WK - BEELLBUARITE
BERAE)EE - HEHENEHEBNTEE
ZEERTRER THRASREAREKE-

BREBENBREER O E R HUL B ER 2 &

RERETHLERERA - BERRF 2 HELE

SHEE B RMHEE 2 AT H LB EETT
D M AEERYEZ @ RER FERE -

FEEERAEZREFMERT REBY ZH
BERA XRERHEE AR RINGEBREEIE
R -

RERRNERDTR eHEREERMZEAZ
EEFARRERRE CBE R HIRUBF ) £1T
BRI AEERBEBKFRAB AN REREA
UDERPEOTAB 2 ERAERF 2R
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31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The valuation of leased pier was determined by Depreciated Replacement
Cost approach, which is based on an estimate of the market value for
the existing use of the land, plus the current cost of replacement of the
improvements less allowance for physical deterioration and all relevant forms

of obsolescence and optimisation.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the investment
properties, which include the location, size, shape, view, floor level, year of
completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit market price.
The key input is the unit market price. A significant increase/decrease in the

market price will result in the fair value of the investment properties.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’

highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis

over the shorter of 2% to 4.5% or period of the lease term.

All of the investment properties of the Group are held to earn rentals or for

capital appreciation.

13. k&M * (&)

HEBBENGEDRITEEERTEEE %7
ETRB LR RGYHEEL G L
BRREEENRAREEERRERBRAMENR
A RRE LB E-

ETHERSERRENFEZEERE 8L
E R+ -k S8 2E ZRFOHEEMR
= SHEBELMTISER - T2RABEREMT

%{TT&"W%TT&K%LH/TH% HEEY
EZRFEELF T
REMEZAFEERFERETHERAFEER

o

E-RVFEEFEDANEEME L HFEEKER
BRRE REYMEZERAETEER -

LR REMENBEREIR2%EA 5% A E FH
(ABmEEREINE-

AEEMEREVEDFIERRESRE AL
B

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

R2015%12A31H 201412 A31H
HK$'000 F&7 HK$'000 F %71
The carrying value of investment properties shown DERMRBRENE REERE:
above comprises:
Investment properties situated in Hong Kong held REBNFRRERFCRENE
under medium-term leases 2,221 2,330
Investment properties situated in the PRC held R TERESE 2
under medium-term land use rights BEME 72,330 52,764
74,551 55,094
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAk STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e BHwRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

14. Y% - BB RRE

Furniture,
Freehold and fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction
leasehold land Buildings equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
AARER & -EBR
HENLH BF wfE  HEREE EH RRIR e
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FiET FET FET FET FET FET
Cost A
At 1 January 2014 M2014F1A1R 21,550 964,966 802,009 2,178,258 25,499 33,634 4,025916
Currency realignment NEREESR - (439) (440) (146) (49) (103) (1,177)
Additions 0 - 767 7,259 88,408 652 31,668 128,754
Reclassifications to: ARE:
— investment properties -RENE - (23,834) - - - - (23,834)
- others —Hft - 33,310 7,649 2,107 - (43,066) -
Disposals/written-off HE - (4,466) (24,321) (47 840) (1,609) - (78,236)
At 31 December 2014 H2014%12A31 B 21,550 970,304 792156 2220787 24,493 2133 4051423
Currency realignment JNEHEEE () (2,128) (1,652) (1,226) (142) (39) (5,546)
Additions 2 - 969 30,299 70,412 1,179 14,952 117,811
Reclassifications to: ARz
— investment properties -RENE - (27,634) - - - - (27,634)
- others —Hfh - 225 12,331 8,052 - (20,608) -
Disposals/written-off HE /G - - (25,458) (49,374) (1,476) - (76,308)
At 31 December 2015 R2015512A318 21,548 941,736 807,676 2,248,651 24,054 16,081 4,059,746
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REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12A31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

14. Y15 - #es Rt ()

Furniture,
Freehold and fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction
leasehold land Buildings equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
KABER B £ER
HENLH B7F #E  BERES EH HRIR e
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FAT FHET FET FET FET FET FET
Depreciation and impairment REREE
At 1 January 2014 M2014F1A1R 12,015 283 845 586,440 1,495,663 18,443 - 2,401,406
Currency realignment NEBEER - (108) (292) (81) (42) - (523)
Provided for the year REEERE 215 41,162 39,513 118713 2,481 - 202,084
Eliminated on reclassification AREREMERMH
to investment properties - - - - - - -
Eliminated on disposals/written-off HE /TR - (2,127) (20,498) (47,667) (1,426) - (71,718)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31H 12,230 327,772 605,163 1,566,628 19,456 - 2,531,249
Currency realignment NEBREER - (622) (1,149) (821) (115) - (2,707)
Provided for the year _REEEE 215 40,074 31,495 116,299 2,045 - 190,128
Eliminated on reclassification to REZREMERME
investment properties - (2,309) - - - - (2,309)
Eliminated on disposalshwritten-off HE /B - - (23,139) (44,282) (1,314) - (68,735)
At 31 December 2015 #2015F12A31H 12,445 364,915 612,370 1,637,824 20,072 - 2,647,626
Carrying values FEE
At 31 December 2015 #2015F12A31H 9,103 576,821 195,306 610,827 3,982 16,081 1,412,120
At 31 December 2014 20145124316 9,320 642,532 186,993 654,159 5,037 22,133 1,520,174
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAk STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The cost of above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated,
after taking into account of their estimated residual values, on a straight-line

basis.

The carrying values of properties shown above comprises:

Freehold and leasehold land and buildings

e BHwRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

14. Y% - #ERRME (H)
R W ES TR 2 AR A R 2 M a
FIBHEEELERETE-

A ERRMEREERRE:

Construction in progress

AABGEREENLHUREF REIR
At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 R20145F 20154 R2014F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
HK$'000 F%& 7 HK$000 F/&T HK$'000 F& 7 HK$000 F& 1
Leasehold land in Hong Kong under REBNFHEESER
medium-term leases HEL 6,770 6,986 = -
Freehold land outside Hong Kong REBUIMNGKARE Lt 2,333 2,334 = -
Buildings erected on land in Hong Kong ~ RBEBNTHEESER
held under medium-term leases T EMEF 2,983 3,115 = -
Buildings erected on land in the PRC PAF I BAFR B 4 3 P R R B A
held under medium-term land use rights ~ +3t1 FRIIEF 506,340 570,068 16,081 22,133
Buildings erected on freehold and REBEBUINKATE R
leasehold land held under medium-term AR HIRERERMHE
leases outside Hong Kong (note) T FETF (M) 67,498 69,349 = -
585,924 651,852 16,081 22,133

Note: The directors of the Company consider that the allocation of buildings erected on the

freehold and leasehold land cannot be reliably separated for disclosure.

Wi RRREERR WXAFEREEN T 2T
DETREA S D AR ER -
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REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

15. A{fHHERE

At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014

RM2015%12A31H R2014F12A31H
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F/& T
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: AEEMBENEERERE:
Leasehold land situated outside Hong Kong under MRBEENINATEREES
medium-term leases or medium-term land use rights BT RESENEE L 104,626 107,373
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FERMEMAHT:
Current assets MBEE 2,606 2,610
Non-current assets IRHEE 102,020 104,763
104,626 107,373
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EERE(EE)AREE 20]15FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAk STATEMENTS

e BHwRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H
l6. Hitt B EE

Software

B4
HK$'000 T & 7T

Cost
At 1 January 2014
Additions

At 31 December 2014
Additions

At 31 December 2015

Amortisation
At 1 January 2014

Provided for the year

At 31 December 2014

Provided for the year

At 31 December 2015

Carrying values

At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014

EES
720141 H1H
#10

F20144 12 A31H
2l

2015412 A31H

B
M201441731H
EFERE

2014512 A31H
EFERE

2015512 H31H

ARTE B
2015412 A31H

2014412 A31H

30,284
495

30,779
488

31,267

3,133

3,133
3,246

6,379

24,888

27,646
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mEM KRR
31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. A—EBE L T 2R

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

M2015%12A31H R2014F12A31H
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F/& T
Unlisted shares, at cost I ETRGD  LARARSIHE 16,204 16,204
Share of post-acquisition profit/(loss) FERUEEB AT/ (FE) 101 (738)
16,305 15,466

Particulars of the associate of the Group at 31 December 2015 and 31  ALEBEFL A T)HN2015F12 431 H k2014412 A

December 2014 is as follows: 3IHZ&EIBWT:
Percentage of
ownership
Form of business Place of Place of operation and interests/voting
Name structure incorporation principal activities rights/profit share
it A EER
REE
=1 EBERBERX = 18 B 3L P AE b EEMERREEER BABF DL
HEEKIBEBRA A Corporation The PRC Construction and managing of 30%
sewage treatment plant in
the PRC
= aaled PR B R N B IR V5 KB IR AR

The primary business of 5 2= % Bk 7% E R A 7 is engaged in construction  HEMREKBER AN EIEEK INERE R
and managing of sewage treatment plant in Dongguan of Guangdong e &% N EIESKEIER -

Province.

'—!'

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in the i N A T AR AR R A R KSR -

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Summarised financial information of an associate that are not individually

material:

REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

17. R—EBE AT 2B (&)
FRFBES 2 B8 AR Z BB E R

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

R2015%12831H R2014%12H31H

HK$'000 F# 7 HK$000 Fi# T

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations REREEBE 2 BA,/ (BB) 839 (738)

Other comprehensive income EtmeAEkE - -

Total comprehensive income 2EhERE 839 (738)
18. DEFERRED TAX 18. IEEF 18

The major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised by the Group and

movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods are as

AEBRAREREIBAE RS HHERN TR
EERIBEE (BE) REEHWT:

follows:
Accelerated tax
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
RABERE BEFE Hity #E
HK$000 F& T HK$000 F& 1 HK$000 Fi& T HK$000 F& T
(note)
(H32)
At 1 January 2014 R2014%5181H 5,661 (5,386) (32,233) (31,958)
Charged to profit or loss REREANNR 6,412 290 3,339 10,041
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H 12,073 (5,096) (28,894) (21,917)
Charged/(credit) to profit or loss RIEZEANR (FA) 1,226 97 (12,918) (11,595)
Currency realignment INEBREEE (5) - - (5)
At 31 December 2015 #H2015F12A31H 13,294 (4,999) (41,812) (33,517)

Note: The amount represents mainly deferred tax assets arising from unrealised profit on
inventories, unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment between subsidiaries
and deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax charged on an overseas
subsidiary at the amounts of HK$3,927,000 (31 December 2014: HK$2,446,000),
HK$2,431,000 (31 December 2014: HK$2,621,000) and HK$323,000 (31 December
2014: HK$319,000) respectively.

Bzt

FHEREIERATFENAZRBFLMEARZME
HWRERBRBHABNAZB NG MEENREREE
B AR —FEE NGB A RN R BB AT E £ KR
ERHIEEE - 2 5 /3,927,000% 7T (2014412 A31
H : 2,446,000/ 7T) 2,431,000/ 7T (2014412 31
A : 2,621,000/ Jt ) 5&323,0007% 7T (2014412 A31
A :319,000/ L) °
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31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
18. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$375 million (31 December 2014: HK$765 million) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$30 million (31 December 2014: HK$31 million)
of such losses, which represent tax losses incurred by certain of the
Company’s subsidiaries as it is considered by the management that future
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$345 million (31 December 2014: HK$734 million) tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. As at 31 December 2015, of the
above tax losses, an aggregate amount of approximately HK$110 million
(31 December 2014: HK$493 million) can be carried forward for five years
following the year when the losses were incurred. Other tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31 December 2015, the Group had other deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$39 million (31 December 2014:
HK$21 million) mainly consist of unrealised gain on transfer of plant and
equipment between subsidiaries, unrealised profit on inventories, allowance
for doubtful debts and inventories and interest capitalisation. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not certain that taxable profits will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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B 7 48 FA 1 T8 5 8 40 £375,000,0007% 7T (20144F
12A31H : 765,000,000/ 7t ) ° if it T8 &5 18 R 49
30,000,000 T (2014412 A31A : 31,000,000
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T HIFHIE B8 A5345,000,00058 7T (2014412 A31
H : 734,000,000/ 7T ) B 7 B 7881 7 2 &Y &2 ) 2k
TR KA R BIREN I & & - 2015512 A31
B bt EE IR+ - #8458 49110,000,0007% 7T
(2014412 A31H : 493,000,000 7T ) A R & 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

According to the EIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding
income tax will be imposed on dividends relating to profits earned in
the calendar year 2008 onwards to foreign investors for the companies
established in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong and
holds at least 25% of the equity interest in the PRC company, reduced
rate of 5% will be applied. No deferred tax has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to such loss amounting to HK$44,544,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$43,833,000). Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$192,870,000
(31 December 2014: HK$154,581,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

For an overseas subsidiary, the Group provided the deferred tax in full in
respect of the withholding tax attributable to the undistributed profits of
HK$12,677,000 (31 December 2014: HK$12,525,000). The rate applied is

the domestic income tax rate.

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The

following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for reporting purposes:

REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H
18. IELEHIE (&)
RIEERSHA 20081 A1ARE KA H
B S E)R B AIRAIMR & R B B0 2008 4F I A 12
FEMBTEBRREBRMN1I0%TEIAER -
BB BFA R E ARG D25% R & 1R
BE BRERAERMESY% - FE KRR AL &
Fhax B BB E 4 M0 Y £ 244,544,000 T 1E H
i FE 75 TE B 8 (20144E12 8311 : 43,833,000/

TT) o BB RN SR (B AT DA I AR 2 R ) 2 R

i 2 RAR AT BN AT R ARG BB - R
AP EME R RRF AN 2 B & £192,870,000
¥ 7T (2014412 A31H : 154,581,000/ 7T ) 7 47
B BHRENELRTEHIBRE -

—EEINBARIME  NEECHARDIRET
12,677,000/ 7t (2014512 H31H : 12,525,000
ABIT) ZTEMB 2 BEHREE R IARYE - PTAEA 2
BERZMITFAETE -

MEAMBRARNEINME  FETREEHEE
ERBECDEFE - UATER2HMENRERIE
RBERDAT -

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

M2015%12A31H R2014%12A31H

HK$'000 F# 7T HK$'000 F% T
Deferred tax assets EEREBEEE (39,721) (28,204)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEAE 6,204 6,287
(33,517) (21,917)
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31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
19. INVESTMENT IN LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES

In prior period, the Group entered into contracts with two insurance
companies which contain life insurance policies to insure against the
death of certain key members of management of the Group, with an
aggregate insured sum of approximately US$18.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$145.8 million). Under these contracts, the beneficiary
and policy holder is the Company. The Company has made upfront
payments of HK$36,178,000 in prior period. The monthly insurance costs
and administrative charges determined by the insurance companies will
be deducted from the account value. The insurers will declare interest
(including the guaranteed interest) to the Company on a monthly basis,
based on the amount of account value, at a rate to be determined at their
own discretion. Three of the key members left the Group on 7 December
2012, 1 May 2013 and 18 March 2015, the Group is in the process of

shifting the life insured quota to other key member(s).

19. ASRBREZRE

RIBA M AEEEREREARG AL
ERREABRBRE AASEETEEEE
BEKEZEHNEERR BREB\AHRLOA
18,800,000 7T ( #8 % 7° £9145,800,0007% 7T ) °
BEZEEH SRARREFEAREKAA -
ARRF R @A BB X T8 1) 511836,178,000/%
T HAXMNBRERREBAREENHTERE R
BHREEFBERNR RBRARETAAREES
BERARBEREZFMEAARANTRAE (B
FERFBFE) - NEMIE £ B B H RIR2012%F
12878 201395818 %201543 A 18H B T
AEBEEBZRACEEREMEERE -

20. INVENTORIES 20. 7 &
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
R2015%12A31H R2014F12H31H
HK$'000 & HK$000 F%7T
Spare parts 1 44,370 63,935
Raw materials R 603,230 531,633
Work-in-progress R 417,943 336,041
Finished goods g 344,787 370,288
1,410,330 1,301,897

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

21. EEREEEWFIE
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

R2015%12831H #2014%12A31H

HK$'000 F& T HK$000 57T

Trade receivables ¥R IR 1,061,359 1,169,921
Bills receivables FRENGE 295,506 238,978
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE (43,332) (21,386)
1,313,533 1,387,513
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 60 days to its
trade customers. The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables based on the payment due dates net of allowance for doubtful
debts:

RMEE
31 December 2015 2015%12H31H
21. EXREEEBWKE (&)
REBRENFIORZOR EERTFEEESR
F o 8% REBERYIGBEREMNREMAE (B
RREH) WRE T -

wh 13 7

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

M2015%12A31H R2014%12A31H

HK$'000 T#7 HK$000 F/& 1

Not yet due sl 834,044 873,404
Overdue 1-30 days #H1-30K 285,435 239,743
Overdue 31-60 days # #31-60% 86,352 130,519
Overdue >60 days B IR A0K 107,702 143,847
1,313,533 1,387,513

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are
made to customers with satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit limits
attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. Trade receivables that are

neither past due nor impaired have good track records with the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$479,489,000 (31 December
2014: HK$514,109,000) which was past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss, as
there is no significant change in credit quality and the amounts are either
settled subsequently or still considered recoverable based on the historical

experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

No interest is charged on the overdue trade receivables. The Group has
fully provided for all trade receivables over 360 days as, based on historical
experience, trade receivables that are past due beyond 360 days are
generally not recoverable. Trade receivables between 60 days and 360
days have been provided for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts,

determined by reference to past default experiences.

AEERZEMNEANHELA @FHRBERR
MEEEEMATHEERB -FEHEN SR
TEELERINEF BEPEERBETHT U
T R o 7 5 [ BY 48 38 B3 O A OR0 B ) 2 5K R WA
BYR R EERS

BIETEARE S 5 R 1R B IR I 4 2 79 B9 8 UK
BEA BRI 5479,489,00058 7T (2014412 A31
H:514,109,000/# 7T ) - A #E BB @Al - i
REELXTEBEAEHAZSLHEONEELE
ERBIE BT ERMR AR TURE - AL BT E
FUIEHREBARE AEEVERZSAR
BAEEMERR-

BHEERYGRIA LT ANE - AR B E BB
360K P & EMHRIE 2 BEHREA - 1th Th
AR IR 1B 1 48 B 18 HA HB B 360K 1Y 2 52 JE W IR
— R EEUE - 60K E360K  fH B 2 3 FE K
FIATREFH RN M SR 2 E B E R KER
PEETE MaThe it o
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows:

21. EXREEEWRER (&)
RERBEZEBWT :

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

M2015%12A31H R2014F12A31H
HK$'000 F#&7 HK$000 F/& T
Balance at beginning of the year FNEH 21,386 29,426
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) on trade and EERZEERWFIEL
bills receivables, net AEBAER/ (BE)FE 25,159 (2,935)
Amounts written-off as uncollectible RN E N okt (3,213) (5,105)
Balance at end of the year FiR B 43,332 21,386

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s trade and bills receivables included
in the allowance for doubtful debts with an aggregate balance of
HK$43,332,000 (31 December 2014: HK$21,386,000) was individually
determined to be impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

2016512 A31 B BREEREBREALERR
43,332,000 7T (2014412 A31A : 21,386,000
BTINAEEEEREREWFECEREBEE
RERE - ARENER AT ERITH E@MER

o
am °

22. A FIE - RERHEMEKRE

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

RN2015%12A31H R2014F12H31H

HK$'000 7 HK$'000 T ¥

Value-added tax recoverable AREBEER 19,589 23,331
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables B BAFEREMEKKE 97,176 101,088
116,765 124419
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31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H
23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3.TE€mI A
Current
e
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
R2015%12831H R2014%F12A31H
HK$'000 F&7 HK$000 F/& T
Derivative financial liabilities fTEERmER
Foreign currency forward contracts EHIMNERD - 1,686
The principal terms of the Group’s foreign currency forward contracts — A20144F12 8318 » AN E 4 & Bl Hi 79 ix HAHME
outstanding at 31 December 2014 are as follows: ERZEEZGERTWT
Notional amount Currency conversion HESE BEEBRE
At 31 December 2014: A2014%12A31H :
3 contracts to sell USD10,000,000 USD1:RMB6.0845 to 6.0900 IMBELAEHE 1ETR
in total 10,000,000 JTHY AR #6.084570 2
X0 AR #6.09007T

The above foreign currency forward contracts would mature within one year

from 31 December 2014.

The fair values of the above derivative instruments are calculated in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on quoted
forward exchange rates and discounted cash flow analysis based on the
applicable yield curves of interest rates which were provided by counterparty

financial institutions.

FHGRARNE S AR20146 12 A31HBEF —F R
BHR-

FATE T AMAFEESREARTMER
S A3 T 77 BT (2 0 0 D ) 2 M A

B IS R ME R RERR R E ST EER
CES
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24. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-TERM BANK
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

As at 31 December 2015, restricted bank deposits of HK$7,043,000 (2014
Nil) represented guaranteed deposits placed in a bank in PRC as securities

for bills payables.

Short-term bank deposits and bank balances carry market interest rates
ranging from 0.01% to 5.2% (31 December 2014: 0.01% to 6.00%) per

annum.

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

24. SRHEBITHEREHRTE
BORTEKRERS

72015512 A31 B » Z R HIR1TF 57,043,000/

7T (20144 : B ) I F A R B —RBITERER

FERT SRR M) B ERFR

MHRTERRRITERDENHFREN
F0.01%%E5.2% (2014412H31H : 0.01% =

6.00% ) &F B e

25. 8 X RRBENRE

At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014

20155128318 R2014%12A31H

HK$'000 F&T HK$000 F%7T

Trade payables EEEMNTE 561,234 482710
Bills payables ZRENZR 290,243 318,686
851,477 801,396

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based on the payment

BERENFIRRNREBBENRESTOT

due dates:
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
R2015%12831H R2014%F12A31H
HK$'000 F& 7T HK$000 F/& T
Not yet due il 490,001 394,750
Overdue 1-30 days #HA1-30K 48,131 41,069
Overdue 31-60 days #H31-60% 8,473 21,784
Overdue >60 days B A0K 14,629 25,107
561,234 482,710

All the bills payables of the Group are not yet due at the end of the reporting
period.
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25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, bills payables of HK$22,682,000 (31 December
2014: Nil) were secured by the Group’s restricted bank deposits of
HK$7,043,000 (31 December 2014: Nil).

The average credit period on purchase of goods ranges from 30 days to 120

REPBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H
25 EXREBENRIE (&)
2015412 A31 8 » 2 & fE {7 5k 1822,682,000
0 (2014128310 ) A %£E A #
7,043,000 7T (20145128318 : Z) 2 Z IR #
RITFERIEREHR

BENTAEEHRIOREI20R - REEER

days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure B EREERE  UBREMZEHERNEE
that payables are within the credit time frame. PR A ©

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. EMENRERESTEH

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

R2015%12A31H R2014F12H31H

HK$'000 F& T HK$'000 F %7

Other payables HibER B 120,490 86,318

Accruals fEEH & 223,009 183,370

343,499 269,688

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS/AN ASSOCIATE

(a) Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b) Amount due to an associate

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable with agreed 30 days

credit period.

28. DEFERRED INCOME

In 2008, the Group received a government subsidy of HK$72,912,000 for
the purchase of certain assets, which had been deferred to recognise as
income over the useful lives of the relevant assets upon the fulfillment of
the relevant conditions. An amount of HK$1,458,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$1,458,000) was amortised as income during the year.

27. RFERBRR—BBE QAR
]
) RIFHE B RR IR

ERAEAREN 2R REBREE-

(b) R—EHEE T
BHEFEAEERE 2B NMARIOAHEEEE
FEE

/T/\ IE\

|E

28. IEIEW A
20084 » AN £ B B I — I8 BT 4 RE72,912,000
B ARBEETEE B RN ERAER GG
BEABEECREHERBRA-EN BEF
1,458,000/ 7T (2014412 A31A : 1,458,000/
T BHBRA -
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31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS/BANK 29. RITRHEMEE BITEX
OVERDRAFTS
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
M2015%12A31H R2014%12H31H
HK$'000 F &7 HK$000 F/# T
Secured borrowings: BEREER:
Bank loans (note (2)) BRITER (M (@) 11,830 32,393
Unsecured borrowings: BEREE:
Bank loans BITER 525,123 777,518
Import bills loans EOER 116,891 188,589
Bank overdrafts RITBEX - 1,439
653,844 999,939
Repayable as follows: BT HREEE:
On demand or within one year (note (b)) EEREEXIFA (HiEb) 494,619 786,270
More than one year, but not exceeding 1EU EETEB2E
two years 159,225 213,669
653,844 999,939
Less: Amounts repayable on demand or due within W EEREERIFANBEEEA
one year shown under current liabilities MEBEEE
~ bank borrowings due within one year - 1ERIBEMBETEE (494,619) (784.831)
— bank overdrafts —RITEX - (1,439)
Amounts due after one year 1F4EBeE 159,225 213,669
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29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS/BANK
OVERDRAFTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Bank loans of HK$11,830,000 (31 December 2014: HK$32,393,000) are secured by
certain life insurance policies as detailed in note 19.

(b)  The current liabilities include bank loans of HK$11,830,000 (2014: HK$12,737,000)
that are not scheduled to repay within one year. They are classified as current
liabilities as the related loan agreements contain a clause that provides the lenders
with an unconditional right to demand repayment at any time at its own discretion.

The bank borrowings of the Group are mainly variable rate borrowings
which carry interest at HIBOR plus a spread,
(31 December 2014: 1% to 2.8%) or London Interbank Offered Rate plus
ranging from 1.3% to 2% (31 December 2014: 1.3% to 2%)

ranging from 1% to 2.8%

a spread,
per annum in Hong Kong. The average effective interest rates of the bank
borrowings of the Group is 2.45% (31 December 2014: 2.52%) per annum.
Some other bank borrowings of the Group carry interest at fixed-rates
ranging from 1.02% to 2.7% (31 December 2014: 2.34% to 3.43%) per

annum.

In addition, the average effective interest rate of the bank overdrafts of the

Group was 3.54% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Pursuant to the Group’s banking facilities letters, the Group was required to
maintain a number of covenant ratios. During the years ended 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group had complied with all covenant

ratios.

R MR R MR
31 December 2015 20154 12H31H

29. RITRAEMEE RITEX
(%’E

et -

~

(@ #H|ITEK11,830,000% 7T (2014F12A318 :
32,393,000/ 70 ) TIAE T ABRBREER/EM &
BEARIEELS

(b)) RHEEBETEN-—FRIHEEZRITER
11,830,0007% 7t (20144 : 12,737,000/ 7T ) ° B R 4H
BB B R TR R R BT R BE
BEIEE SRR MARRITERMA B AR AE -

AEENBRTEEFERZILEE REBT
BEABTRAEREMNLEEENT1%E2.8%
(20144 12A31H 1 1%%£2.8% ) 8k fa IR 1T A
EREMEBENTF1.3%E2% (20145F12/31
B:13%E2%) 2 FFERF B - AEBBITEE
2 EBRER K A2.45% (20149F12H318 ¢
2.52% ) - REEIBH HMIRITIEE THiE E T F F
KA F1.02%ZE2.7% (2014412 A318 : 2.34%
£3.43% )it B

BEON B E2014F 12310 IFFE & A EERTT
BYNEHEBREFNEAE3H4% °

RIFAEEONRITEE N AEBAEFRE

BE - REVE20155F 12 A31 R k2014512 A
BIREFEN  ASECDEBTFRARZOLE-
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31 December 2015 2015%12A31H

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. &
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
M2015%12H31H #2014%12A31H
No. of shares HK$'000 No. of shares HK$000
ROEHE FET REE FET
Authorised: EERA:
At beginning of the year RRFE IR - = 1,400,000,000 280,000
The concept of authorised share capital ER2014F3A38 KR 2
was abolished on 3 March 2014 (Note) EEBRARNEES (Hi2) = - (1,400,000,000) (280,000)
At the end of the year RRFRERER - - - -
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
M2015%12H31H #2014%12A31H
No. of shares HK$'000 No. of shares HK$000
ROEE FET REEE FET
Issued and fully paid: BRTRBERE:
At beginning of the year RREE iRk 1,203,046,960 862,211 1,203,046,960 240,609
Exercise of share options IR E 1,980,000 3,505 - -
Transfer from share premium and capital 1B ER2014F3A3H £
redemption reserve upon abolition of MABDAED - FERRA
nominal value under the new Hong HAERBHEER
Kong Companies Ordinance effective BRI E B (i)
on 3 March 2014 (Note) - - - 621,602
At the end of the year REFERER 1,205,026,960 865,716 1,203,046,960 862,211
Note: The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622 (the Ordinance) came into effect on  fifat - E622F &8 A Al &0 (1£6]) R2014F3A3H £

3 March 2014. Under s.135 of the Ordinance, shares in a company do not have a
nominal value. Accordingly, the concept of authorised share capital is abolished. The
no nominal value regime applies to the Company. Following the transitional provisions
in the Ordinance, any amount standing to the credit of the share premium account
and capital redemption reserve at the beginning of 3 March 2014 became part of the
Company’s share capital.

The use of share capital from 3 March 2014 is governed by s.149 of the Ordinance.
However, the application of the amount transferred from share premium account at
the beginning of 3 March 2014 is governed by the transitional provision in .38 of
Schedule 11 to the Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The 2002 Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”), which was
adopted by the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 25
January 2002. The 2002 Scheme was expired on 24 January 2012. The
primary purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible mean of giving incentives to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the employees and for such other purposes
as the board of directors of the Company may approve from time to time.
Under the 2002 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may offer to
full time employees, including full time executive directors, of the Company
and/or its subsidiaries who have completed the probation period options to
subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms of the
2002 Scheme for the consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options
granted. The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2002 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at the date of approval of the 2002 Scheme.
The Company may seek approval from shareholders of the Company in
general meeting to refresh the 10% limit. In addition, the maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% (or such higher
percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total number
of shares in issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any employee in any 12-month period is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue, subject to approval from shareholders of the Company. Options
granted must be taken within 28 days of the date of grant or such longer or
shorter period as the board of directors of the Company may think fit. The
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised
is one year or such other period as the board of directors of the Company
may think fit commencing from the date of grant (“Holdup period”). An
option period, at the absolute discretion of the board of directors of the
Company, shall commence on the expiry of the Holdup period and expire
no later than the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise price is
determined by the board of directors of the Company and will be at least the

highest of the followings:

mEMBRRME

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H
S1.URBAERERBZARRS
20024F 5+ &l
KNNEIHEE —IBRERERTE) ([200245T&]]) - T)
AN A A A20024F1 A25F 217 2 IR RIA &
R 2002F 5H 8| B 7A20129F 1 B248 & im °
2002F T EIMNEZEMNARARRAAIREES T

B RE B MER SRR ERAR
AEEETHIENEMEMmERE—ER

7R - R HR20024F 51 & - AR A& = & A #£2002
FHBNGERBETARAR SEWNERTE B
BAAMNZBES (BE2BATES) BRE
NRBARRARG  BREXBERENKRERLS
7T ° IR HR20024F 51 Bl P HH B0 B AR A T 2 1T RO AR
MR B % TSR IB20024F B IR =T 21 EHL &
EHRE BTN EENI0% - AR A A EKRER
RE S KR E - BHUL10%H) LR © o)
RIR20024F 51 8| R AN R AHEf A b BE AR EST BB
B ) AR TT 6 B0 IS O I T (R T BT BV AR 1) 48
o HETEBARRATREDEITRM LD
30% (SRIE ETARBIAFNERS LR) -FRE#E
PRERBLAE SN  EAAT LA IR B PMET 1218 A B A -
HRETERBERBRIENRDEE K2 NG
BARNFEEITROLENL% - EENLALE
RIERHBR2BAANX ARG EZG AR RE
ENHMBRRIREARNENTER THER
% EEVASORREBRFAIFHAAAES
AR AREENHMERE ([FEH 1) ARk
e A AHEHRE - RERAA R R EEGIRE
HMEREET KhsEHERERGBTERD
EREHBRIOGBFER -TEEHARRIES
EEE BUEARUTIERNRSE

B AR AE

0
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

(a) the closing price of shares at the date of grant of a share option;

(b) the average closing price of the shares for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of a share.

Under the 2002 Scheme, 22,400,000 options were granted on 17
September 2010. The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date of grant was HK$1.29. Details of the movements of those

options and other information of the grant are set out below.

The 2011 Scheme

On 20 January 2011, the 2002 Scheme was early terminated and the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting held
on the same date. Further details are set out in the announcement of the

Company dated 10 December 2010.

The terms and conditions of the 2011 Scheme are basically the same
as those of the 2002 Scheme except that the eligible participants of the
2011 Scheme include, among others, directors and full-time or part-time
employees whereas the eligible participants of the 2002 Scheme cover only
directors and full-time employees. In addition, there is no specific period
for accepting the share options granted and also no specific Holdup period,
which are determined by the board of directors upon the grant of share

options as they think as appropriate.

The 2011 Scheme will expire on 20 January 2021.

Under the 2011 Scheme, share options of 3,352,000 and 23,045,000 were
granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011, respectively. The closing
prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates of grant were

HK$1.80 and HK$1.21, respectively.
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BRI E BRI T
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Rl 20115 B2 A ER2EERTE (HhE
BEEREBNRBEE  M002FHEZ2AE
R2REEBREZL2RIES - 1o HIERE
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options

granted under the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme.

e BHwRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

BSLLURGBBERZARRE (&)

TRBEARRRIRIE20024 51 8 2201171 &2
BROBREZZSHER-

Outstanding at Expired Exercised  Outstanding at
1 January Forfeited during during 31 December
Scheme Date of grant Exercise price 2015  during the year the year the year 2015
R2015F R2015F
1818 12A318
8 REAH TEE i RAT 68 FRERK FRERR FRETE i RATHE
Category 1: Directors
£10: 8%
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 - - - 4,600,000
ERRRAE 20026 2010697178 1.29%7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - - - 3,300,000
2011% 2011487188 121% T
Dr. YEN Gordon 2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - - (1,980,000) 1,320,000
RE#HET 201154 201148A18H L21E T
Total Directors EE 4 £ 11,200,000 - - (1,980,000) 9,220,000
Category 2: Employees 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 (4,600,000) - - -
#2088 20026 2010697178 1.29% T
2011 18 May 2011 HK$1.91 2,086,000 (244,000) (1,842,000) - -
2011% 2011454188 191E T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 6,800,000 (5,300,000) (1,500,000) - -
2011% 2011487188 12L&
Total employees {E & & # 13,486,000 (10,144,000) (3,342,000) - -
Two categories MZARIA £ 24,686,000 (10,144,000) (3,342,000) (1,980,000) 9,220,000
Exercisable at the end of the year
RRFERERT TR

14,286,000

6,060,000

137



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS Bl. UM ARER AR S (&)
(Continued)
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 January Forfeited 31 December
Scheme Date of grant Exercise price 2014  during the year 2014
201445 R2014%F
1818 12A31H
rE ®EBH THEE i R AT R FRERK i RATBE
Category 1: Directors
FlREE
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
BRTEAE 20024  20109F9AH17H 1.29% 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
20114  201148A18H 1.21%7T
Dr. YEN Gordon 2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
e 2011%F  201148H18H 1.21% 7T
Total Directors & £ 4 4t 11,200,000 - 11,200,000
Category 2: Employees
2 RE
2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
20024  20109F9AH17H 1.29% 7T
2011 18 May 2011 HK$1.91 2,448,000 (362,000) 2,086,000
20114  201145H18H 19147t
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 8,300,000 (1,500,000) 6,800,000
20119  201148K18H 1.21%87T
Total Employees & 84 £ 15,348,000 (1,862,000) 13,486,000
Two categories R 48 B4 26,548,000 (1,862,000) 24,686,000
Exercisable at the end of the year
MR FERERA TITE 8,846,000 14,286,000

Share options granted on 17 September 2010 under the 2002 Scheme are
exercisable during the period from 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017 in

three tranches, being

° 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017 (up to 30.00% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

° 17 March 2015 to 17 March 2017 (up to 60.00% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

° 17 March 2016 to 17 March 2017 (all share options granted are

exercisable)
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Share options granted on 18 May 2011 under the 2011 Scheme are
exercisable during the period from 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2015 in three

tranches, being

° 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2015 (up to 32.52% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

° 18 May 2013 to 17 May 2015 (up to 65.04% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

° 18 May 2014 to 17 May 2015 (all share options granted are

exercisable)

Share options granted on 18 August 2011 under the 2011 Scheme are

exercisable by 2 batches as follows:

Batch 1: 15,900,000 share options are exercisable during the period from
19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017 in five tranches, being

° 19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017 (up to 20.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2013 to 18 August 2017 (up to 40.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2014 to 18 August 2017 (up to 60.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2015 to 18 August 2017 (up to 80.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2016 to 18 August 2017 (all share options granted are

exercisable)

REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

BSLLURGBBERZARRE (&)

A2011F5 8 18A B E201 1 F T 21% H 2 B #E
AI 2012465 A 18 £201545 A 17 H HA RS 531#
P& EX 7 LATTE - BD

o 2012F5A18H £2015%F5A178 (&% % 1h
D% BB 2 32.52% 0] F171E)

e 2013F5A18H £2015%F5A178 (&% % 1h
% BB 2 65.04% 0] F171E)

e 2014F5A18H E2015F5A178 (FrET
BHZ BARE F176)

7201148 H18H R IE201 14F 51 B4 2 H A i
A D24 T RATTEE - EAIA T

14 : 15,900,00017 8 A% 4 7] 72201298 A19H
£2017F8 180 HAM  51EPE EE T LATTfE - B

o 2012F8HA19R £2017%F8A18H (&% % 1h
2% BB AR 2 20.00% 7] F171E)

e 2013F8A19H £20174F8H18H (& % 1h
=% BB AL R 2 40.00% 7] F171E)

e 2014F8H19R £2017%F8H18H (&% % 1h
2% BB AR 2 60.00% 7] F171E)

e 2015%F8HA19H £201748H18H (& % 1h
1% BB AL R 2 80.00% /] T 171 )

e 2016F8A19H E2017F8H18R (FrE T
WHZ BARE T176)
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 31.
(Continued)

Batch 2: 7,145,000 share options are exercisable during the period from 19
August 2012 to 18 August 2015 in three tranches, being

° 19 August 2012 to 18 August 2015 (up to 34.15% of the share e

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2013 to 18 August 2015 (up to 68.31% of the share e

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2014 to 18 August 2015 (all share options granted are e

exercisable)

UERORER NS (K])

F2#k 1 7,145,00015 EE R R] FA2012F8 A 198 &
201598 A 18 H HifE D 3{EPE B F LATTfE - B

201248 A19H £2015%8A18R (% %14
SR ERE234.15% 7] F171E)

201348 A19R 2201598 A18H (& %1k
B HBERE26831%7 T1T#£)

201448 A19R £2015%8A18A (A
B2 BRHER] T1T(E)

The fair values of the share options were determined using the Binomial

model:

Under the
2002 Scheme
Share options

Under the
2011 Scheme
Share options

BREZAFEEDRB DEAEAEE:

Under the
2011 Scheme
Share options

granted on granted on granted on

17 September 18 May 18 August

2010 2011 2011

R 152002F 5+ & BIE2011F 52 BIE2011F 58

®201069AH17RH R2011F5H18H R201158H18H

ERENEBRE ERENERE ERENEBRE

Number of options BREZE 22,400,000 3,352,000 23,045,000
Grant date fair value BBz ATER HK$15,812,0007 7T HK$2,718,000/7c  HK$13,156,0007% 7T
Grant date share price BEBAHZRE HK$1.297 7T HK$1.807% 7T HK$1.2178 7T
Exercise price 7B HK$1.29% 7T HK$1.91# 7T HK$1.21% T
Suboptimal exercise factor RETEER 2 2 2
Contractual life & 4T H 6.5 years & 4 years 4-6 years
Expected volatility TERT R bR 58.25% 66.97% 59.96%-66.16%
Dividend yield g 8 & 0% 0.568% 0.88%
Risk-free interest rate [ b ) o 1.59% 1.23% 0.48%-0.99%
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(Continued)

Expected volatilities were determined by using historical volatilities of the
stock return of the Company over the previous 4 to 6.5 years. The risk-
free interest rates used in the model were determined based on the yield of
Hong Kong Sovereign Curve for the share options granted on 17 September
2010 and the yield of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note for the share options
granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011.

The Group recognised a net reversal of HK$546,000 (31 December 2014:
total expense HK$1,244,000) for the current year in relation to share options
granted by the Company. Out of the amount, total expense of HK$578,000
(31 December 2014: HK$1,043,000) is related to the directors of the

Company.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had a weighted average

remaining contractual life of 1.4 years (31 December 2014: 1.9 years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit and loss over
the remaining vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the share

options reserve.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the share
options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an

option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

BSLLURGBBERZARRE (&)

TEHR 1B TR A AR A R B R4E6.5F IR FE B 3R
ZE LR IEETE o A R PR A 2 A R R 3
TR IEE S EREHAR B3R K (yield of Hong Kong
Sovereign Curve) (3t2010F9A17HEHE 2 B
Bt REBINEESEHEIRE (52011457
180 201148 A 18H BRI 2 BRI ) B 5

AEERAFEERARARE 2 BRIERER
& [0 )% ¥2546,0007% 7T (2014512 H31H - #
1,244,000/ 7T.) © & F1578,000/% JT £ 48 B
(2014412 A31H : 1,043,000/ 7T ) B A Q 7] &
=H@-

R2015F 128318 » W ARITHE R B ARE R pnAE
BFBEHNFEALAF (2014F12A318:1.9
&) o

RBEHR RAEBETEUBRNRKEBRNE
BEHB 2Bt -BAIRABHEEZFE (I
B)ENHFEBFHMNMERRAER  WRNEEE
ML AR -

B AT (B ERA — B A 5 St
BEATEEMRDZSDRERBRDEEE
£ BEET TR BRRZ BENE TR
BRZEBDRETRAMNTAE-
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31 December 2015 2015 12H31H
32. RESERVES 32. f#1E
The Company PIN/NE]
Capital  Investment Share
Share  redemption  revaluation options Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
EXEE REEHR
RDEE 51 #E BRERE R2REA #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET TET
At 1 January 2014 H201451 517 621,392 210 - 13603 1488717 2123922
Transfer upon abolition of 201463 A3H BB R 1D
nominal value of shares and HEREABOHERZ
capital redemption reserve el
on 3 March 2014 (621,392) (210) - - - (621,602)
Loss and total comprehensive REEBERZERXAE
expense for the year - - - - (200,038) (200,038)
Dividend recognised as distribution ~ ©HER AN EZRE - - - - (24,061) (24,061)
Equity-settled share-based payments  AEZEE AR A
S ANE S - - - 1,243 - 1,243
At 31 December 2014 #2014£12A31 8 - - - 14846 1264618 1279464
Transfer % - - 1,805 (5,716) 3911 -
Profit for the year eFEAT - - - - 113,302 113,302
Net gain arising on revaluation of FRAEMGAHLE
available-for-sale financial assets PREAEEEY
during the year YzgE - - 426 - - 426
Dividend recognised as distribution ~ EERAD R ZKE - - - - (48,201) (48,201)
Exercise of share options T B - - - (1,109) - (1,109)
Equity-settled share-based NREENRRDA
payments reverse AR AREE - - - (546) - (546)
At 31 December 2015 20154128316 - - 2231 7475 1333630 1343336
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31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

33. HOLDING COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL  33. #R A R 2 M B AR R K&K

POSITION
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
R2015%12A31H #2014%12A31H
Notes B 7t HK$'000 ¥ HK$'000 %1
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME KREREE 3,988 5,495
Investment in life insurance policies AERBREZRE 38,345 37,850
Investments in subsidiaries MEBARRE 22,265 30,849
64,508 74,194
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRRE HER
H KR 1,960 4,054
Amounts due from subsidiaries WBARMRTIE 3,001,294 3,001,345
Tax recoverable AREFHE 256 256
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 42,586 29,139
3,046,096 3,034,794
Current liabilities wBAE
Other payables and accruals HEth B FEREER 8,465 10,867
Amounts due to subsidiaries RSB ARZE 881,347 942,023
Derivative financial instruments fTHEEBTIE = 1,686
Bank and other borrowings BIREMEE
— due within one year -—F R 11,830 12,737
901,642 97,313
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,144,454 2,067,481
Total assets less current liabilities EEABHRBAR 2,209,052 2,141,675
Net assets BEFE 2,209,052 2,141,675
Capital and reserves EXRfEE
Share capital & A 30 865,716 862,211
Other reserves Hibf# 32 1,343,336 1,279,464
Total equity B 2,209,052 2,141,675
ZHAO Yao HA Kam On, Victor
fiichd EHRR
Director Director
EE EF
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31 December 2015 2015%12A31H

34. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

4. B ARRE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2015 and 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Place/country
of incorporation/
registration and

Issued and fully paid
share capital/

Proportion of

issued share capital/registered

742015512318 K2014F12 831 H A X B #)
TEMBARFREMT:

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital  capital held by the Company Principal activities
TEMARYL/
BRREE BRTRARNRE ARDAFBERORE/
MEARER Fifest,/BIR BERA ERRENLE TEXK
Directly Indirectly
H#E LiE:3
% %
REBIBREBRAF (note a) (Hfita) The PRC HK$14,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of
F 14,000,000 7T garments
SUE R R E K
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles The PRC HK$307,500,000 - 95 Knitting, dyeing, printing
Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. (note b) F 307,500,000% 7T and sales of dyed fabrics
REYBEBEGHBHABERAR (Hitb) HE R DENHEESR
o
Folktune Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BREBAF 05 28T REER
Fountain Set Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of dyed fabrics and
RHEZERAA BE 3,000,000/ 7 yamns
enRkedEs
Fountain Set Textiles (Ontario) Ltd. Canada Canadian Dollars (“CAD") 51 - Trading of fabrics and
MEX 300,100 (Common shares) garments
300,100107¢ (EiAR) MRKKE S
Highscene Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of yarns
ERARRAE BE 3,000,000/ 7T RYESH
Hiway Textiles Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BESHEERDA B 28T KERES
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited (nofe a) The PRC USD110,000,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of
IRBESBERAR (Hida) F 110,000,000% 7T dyed fabrics and yarns
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31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

34. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place/country
of incorporation/
registration and

Issued and fully paid
share capital/

Proportion of

issued share capital/registered

34. (B2 RRE (&)

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital  capital held by the Company Principal activities
EmAL
BEREE BRTRARNRE, KRAMHERTRE/
WEARERE Fifest,/ BIR BRRA BRREANLE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# M
% %
Lake Side Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holdings
BROERERAA B 28T BAER
Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC USD26,000,000 - 55.5  Production and sales of
BRAMERERAR (Hita) ] 26,000,000 7T garments
HERHEKK
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited Democratic Sri Lanka Rupee (“LKR") - 60  Knitting, dyeing, printing
Socialist Republic 985,000,000 and sales of dyed fabrics
of Sri Lanka 985,000,0004 £# FE L P 2e HREAEES
MERFRENE (TE)) i3
FEEA
Oceanstar Textiles International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BEHBERER AR B 28T KEKES
Ocean Yarn Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BFAYBERDA B 28T BAEER
Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited Macao Macau Pataca 100,000 - 100 Trading of yarns, dyestuffs
BE(CRMBEEERSE)ERAR ! 100,000%) and chemicals
BYRECHES
LERESBESHBRADF (note a) (Hiita) The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
H AR 5,000,0007C ehES
FINEBNHBRBRRF (note a) (Hii#a) The PRC RMB35,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
H AR #35,000,0007T ehES
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31 December 2015 2015 12H31H
34. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 4. MELAEKRE (&)
Place/country
of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Proportion of
registration and share capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital  capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMAL
BEREE BRTRARNRE,, KRAMHERTRE/
WEARERE FiEs,/ BR BRRA BRREANLE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# B
% %
Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC USD800,000 - 55.5  Production and sales of
FEEMERERNE (f#a) F 800,000% 7T garments
HERHEKK
Triumph Luck Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 55.5  Trading of garments
HNEERRA N 1,000,000 7 KKE S
B EESBER DA (note a) (Hita) The PRC USD60,500,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of
F 60,500,000 T dyed fabrics and yarns
- 2EREERNRE
Notes: Bzt
a.  Companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC. a.  RPEUINEGEECEKIHRF -
b.  Companies are established as cooperative joint ventures in the PRC. b. MABNUGERENAIELAKINRF

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the A ERAFKMERR IERKAREETRRE
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results of ¥ AEBEEFEXERFETELEIBRAEER
the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets and WEHKNEERBEEEZHH MK - AR F
liabilities of the Group at the end of the reporting period. To give details of ~ E =R AHFI A E A R FIES 5| BRERE
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, MRIU&K - BENEE2014F12H31BIEFEAE
result in particulars of excessive length. Details of the subsidiaries, which ~ Hi & SkEUE FEM KB 2 712 FF B &R HIFE39 ©
were disposed of or deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2014,

are set out in note 39.

None of the subsidiaries had any debentures outstanding at the end of the R FE R LR 2 F EEMKHE  ME R A
year or at any time during the year. AT Al (E R 8 A R o
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The

Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the
borrowings disclosed in note 29, and equity attributable to owners of the

Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an on-going
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with the share capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the Group may balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the

issue of new debts.

REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H
3. EXABERE

AEEEEEAZBHN ERERAEESER
BURERE RFEBNGBEBEER 2HN
REFE BHNEFMEAED R - NEEAER
RESEEF —E-

AEENEARBEREEY (B M E29
RENEE) RARBEA ARE#ER (BEEHE
TTRRA R /) -

ARREFRFEEERFTEARARE - ERRA
— &b BEEEE BE RS BN #O 48 B
BeREEENER AKEELUEBIRERE
BRI M B R B A R BT BTG A EEE
BEARRE-
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31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

36. 2@ T A
(a) @@ T AR
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

R2015%12A31H R2014512A31H
HK$'000 T HK$000 /&
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sales financial assets AftEeREE
(Investment in life insurance policies) (NERBREZEE) 38,345 37,850
Loans and receivables SRR ENRHRE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BRALLRERALER) 2,210,297 2,372,857
Financial liabilities tRERE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost SRBREREENAGE 1,672,213 1,924,014
Derivative financial instruments fTEERIA - 1,686

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The major financial instruments of the Group include investment in life
insurance policies, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, restricted
and short term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, derivative financial
instruments, trade and bills payables, other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders, amount due to an associate, bank and other
borrowings and bank overdrafts. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure

appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
(i) Currency risk
Certain entities in the Group have foreign currency transactions, which

expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages and monitors foreign exchange exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
The Group has entered into foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate

the risk.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities and derivative
financial instruments of the Group that are considered significant by the

management are as follows:

REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H
36. €@ T A (&)
BRREEEEREE (8)

5 m

() EEERE

AEBETEREBINER S BHAKRE L MINE
[N

AEEEERERNERR  UERRSNE R
S IREEE - AR MO BT EARNESL
PESEE S

RE|BERR ERERRBERNAE B LASNE
JMENEREERERABERITESR T ANK
E{EMT

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities: BEEEERERERE
Assets Liabilities
EE afE

At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
RW2015% R20145 H2015% R20145F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12H31H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FET
usD ETT 966,082 891,440 676,165 712,727
RMB ARE 452,444 737,663 345,932 303,745
CAD mx 6,931 3,879 - -
LKR 4 733 776 1,686 2,619
HK$ B 1,777 2,057 1,501 1,492
Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR") HNEE 1,317 1,578 2,326 1,656
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31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments:

36. $EITH (&)

(b) FBEBEERBZENEE (&)
L EE ()

() EEER (E)

PSS BT A:

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

M2015%12A31H R2014F12A31H
HK$'000 & T HK$'000 F %71
Derivative financial assets TESRMEE
Foreign currency forward contracts BAANRBRELETHERBINES D
to buy RMB and sell USD - -
Derivative financial liabilities fTESMERE
Foreign currency forward contracts BAANRBRELETHRBINES D
to buy RMB and sell USD - 1,686
Sensitivity analysis BRE DN

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuation of USD, RMB, CAD
and HK$ when such currencies are different from the relevant group

entities.

The following tables detail the sensitivity of the Group to a 5% increase and
decrease in the above foreign currencies against the functional currency
of the corresponding group entity, except for HK$ against USD since HK$
is pegged to USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and derivative financial instruments
and adjusts their translation or fair value in the case of derivative financial
instruments at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. On
this basis, there will be an increase/(decrease) in pre-tax profit for the year
where foreign currencies strengthen against the functional currencies of the
corresponding group entity by 5%, and vice versa. The analysis is performed

on the same basis for 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities:

REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H
36. €@ T A (&)

(b) MEERERERRLREE (&)

TS5 mE (E)

() E®mEE(E)
BURE DT ()
EREERERAR:

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

R2015%12A31H R2014F12H31H
HK$'000 T#&7 HK$000 F/& T
Increase/(decrease) in pre-tax profit/(loss) for the year REEMARF/ (BB)EN/ (RD)
USD against CAD ELAMT 1,308 1,513
RMB against HK$ ARBERBT 5,319 21375
CAD against HK$ MITRAET 345 192
6,972 23,080
Derivative financial instruments: PTEEmITA
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
RN2015%12A31H R2014F12H31H
HK$'000 T&7 HK$000 F/& T
Increase/(decrease) in pre-tax profit/(loss) for the year REEMAAF/ (BB)EN/ (RD)
Foreign currency forward contracts BEANREREHETH
to buy RMB and sell USD EHNEA D - 3,802

(if)  Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk primarily in

relation to variable-rate bank balances and borrowings. It is the Group’s

policy to keep its bank borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to

minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest rate

risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the

Group’s Hong Kong dollars denominated borrowings. In light of low interest

rate expected to be maintained in long period of time, the Group shall

monitor the interest rate fluctuation closely and arrange appropriate financial

instruments to minimise the interest rate risk.

(i) %5

AEBMEZRENE @R T ERT BRITHEH
LEEER AEENBRRERERTERER
FEMELREAFEENERR ARENR
TREMNERABREIEENNBAEE BT E
E’U%%EEZ%&%@E??E%T&E?&%U°EHB’M&%'J
RERER—BERBRH AREEEUE BN X
ME) > WL PR EN S BT AR RER -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative instruments (included variable-rate
borrowings only as the directors consider the exposure on bank balances is
not significant) at 31 December 2015 and 2014. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 (31 December 2014: 50)
basis points increase or decrease in interest rate is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

For non-derivative bank borrowings, if interest rate had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s pre-
tax profit/(loss) for the year would increase/decrease by HK$2,392,000 (31
December 2014: increase/decrease in pre-tax profit by HK$4,162,000).

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the maximum exposure to credit risk
by the Group which will cause a financial loss due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amounts of the

recognised financial assets as stated in the statements of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to manage the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. Credit sales of products are only made to customers
with good credit quality and repayment history. In addition, the Group
regularly reviews the recoverable amount of debt on both collective and
individual basis to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. During the year ended 31 December 2015, a
net impairment loss of HK$25,159,000 in respect of the trade and bills
receivables was recognised (31 December 2014: a net impairment loss of

HK$2,935,000 in respect of the trade and bills receivables was reversed).

Furthermore, the Company only provides financial guarantees to its
subsidiaries after a careful consideration of its subsidiaries’ financial
conditions. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by reputable

credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a number of

counterparties.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and

ensures compliance with the relevant loan covenants.

REVBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H
36. €@ T A (&)

(b) MEERERERRLREE (&)
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Other than equity, the Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2015, the available unutilised
banking facilities of the Group are approximately HK$3,614 million (31
December 2014: HK$3,383 million).

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for
their non-derivative financial liabilities and derivatives financial liabilities
including foreign currency forward contracts based on the agreed repayment
terms. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest are floating
rates, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of

the reporting period.

For derivative instruments settled on a net basis, undiscounted net
cash flows are presented. Whereas they require gross settlement, the
undiscounted gross outflow/(inflow) on these derivatives are shown on the

tables.

36. $EITH (&)
(b) BIBEBREIEEEREE (8)

REELEE (F)

BRI AEEFBRRITEBERATERDE
© R - R2015F 12 A31H AL BEA AT AR
K8 AIRTTE B4 A3,614,000,000% 7T (2014
4125310 :3,383,000,000/47T) °

TRAVNRBREEEERTEBITESRE
BEERTEERAE (BREHIMNESKH)WBRTA
RZIBIER - BIEITES BB E  ZRDERAE
BB EBRM RO ZEAHRESBRAGBNR
MRRERERE - ZREENEREAZRER
EB-GENERAFEHNEZREAN  RMRERT
MMEHL 2 MEFH -

FHEEENTETIR UAMBEREREFEE
5l MFLBREGE  ZFTETANRBBERH
S ORA) BBEHIIN T K-

Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 1-3 3 months to Over undiscounted 31 December
interest rate on demand months 1 year 1 year cash flows 2015
R2015&
mEFLY  DHSRIUEAR RERRE 1283184
BERA=E EZEX 123f8F 3EAZLE BB1F mEAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FAT FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRER
Trade, bills and other payables 2% ERERAMEMNTE - 557,836 319,451 53,902 = 931,189 931,189
Amounts due to non-controlling RIEERBR R
shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Amount due to an associate Rl E D AIHE - 7,080 - = = 7,080 7,080
Bank and other borrowings BIOREBEE
~fixed rate -ER 1.07 38,813 62,375 77,900 - 179,088 178,271
- variable rate —28 2.37 49,121 84,205 192,394 162,533 488,253 475,573
732,950 466,031 324,196 162,533 1,685,710 1,672,213
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R M ERR MR
31 December 2015 20154 12H31H
36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. ¢@ T H (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies VBRREEERREE (8)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (F)
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 1-3 3 months to Over  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate on demand months 1 year 1 year cash flows 2014
20145
mEF  SRIEAR AEFERE  12A31RH

IR EE% 1237 3EAZELEF BBIE nERE FEE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET FET FET FET FET

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRER

Trade, bills and other payables BE ZERAMERTE - 549,525 243,943 50,507 - 843,975 843,975
Amounts due to non-controlling TR R A
shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Bank overdraft, bank and RITEZ RIORAMEE
other borrowings
- fixed rate -E8 1.74 62,739 54,773 52,822 - 170,334 169,051
- variable rate -8 2.71 154,962 154,439 320,900 216,039 846,340 830,888
847,326 453,155 424,229 216,039 1,940,749 1,924,014
Derivatives - gross settlement fIETA-NAREE
Foreign currency forward contracts RENEEN
- outflow - 54,297 23,270 - - 77,567 N/A
~ inflow —mA (53,161) (22,720) - - (75,881) N/A
1,136 550 - - 1,686 1,686

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non- &/ F & F| K 2 S BB RIR R RERARTEFE 2 F
derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable  =f{hzt&®) 8l FHETA S RABARBYE LA
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end 2 & %8 0] 6E B Fr it o

of the reporting period.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value

(i)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,
amount due to an associate, bank overdrafts and bank and other

borrowings.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,

amount due to an associate and bank overdrafts approximates fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 except for derivative financial

instruments and investment in life insurance policies.

(ii)  Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified and is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique

as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market

data are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable

inputs.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value (Continued)

(ii)  Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, all of the Group’s investment in life
insurance policies and derivative financial instruments are grouped into

Level 2 category.

There were no transfers between the three Levels during the year and prior

year.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of derivative financial instruments are calculated using
generally accepted pricing models based on quoted forward exchange rates
and discounted cash flow analysis based on the applicable yield curves of

interest rates provided by counterparty financial institutions.

REPBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

36.%@1&(%)

~FEEE)
(i) KAFEEFEZEMTA (M)
AT EERE (F)

RMEPE FEEBFBEASRBREZTRER
PTESMTEAYBEAFE2HRT -

RERKBEFEIL ENIEHRR 2 FIELER-

FIR A FEEF BB ERNRBAZE
TEZRTANATFEENEAREERN I

A T 77 B 75 A T 30 3 A R T A B SR 4
B PR RS 2 5 T TR MO RS IR R B AT
AT -

The fair value of investment in life insurance policies is determined based M ASRBIRE ZREH AT EBENBRFREBA
on account value as stated in cash surrender value statement issued by FIFIEEMNRERSEEXRAIINELEE
insurers. Ho
37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EAREIE
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
M2015%12A31H R2014F12A31H
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F& T
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided BENERGATBRERREELREEL
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of: BAREY
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment -BEME BERLE 43,437 28,092
- additions to intangible assets -REEWEE - 338
43,437 28,430
Capital expenditure authorised but not contracted BHEEBREONERHSE
for in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment -BEVE BERRE 425,704 56,178
- additions to intangible assets -REBEWEE - 310
425,704 56,488
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mEMBRRHEE
31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
38. OPERATING LEASES 38. 2£EMHE
As lessee TERFAMEA
2015 2014
2015% 20144
HK$'000 T&7 HK$000 F/&
Minimum lease payments paid under operating lease REEREEREMIAMNSERES S
during the year:
Land and buildings THREF 34,483 44721
Plant and machinery B RS 5,193 5,217
39,676 49938

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall

due as follows:

R|BERK ARERTABUE 2 ERE R KK
RIEEEHAERTIEHA A

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
R2015§12A31H R2014612A31H
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings machinery buildings machinery
THRET e T REF B Ries
HK$'000 ¥ 7 HK$'000 ¥ HK$000 F/& 1 HK$000 F# T
Within one year 15/ 22,487 1,925 29,626 3,825
In the second to fifth year inclusive E2ERFELENR
(BERMEBREERN) 37,354 859 46,446 1,164
Over five years S F 2,617 - 5,471 -
62,458 2,784 81,543 4,989
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38. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises, factories, and plant and machinery. Leases
are negotiated for terms ranging from one to twenty five years for land and
buildings and from one to five years for plant and machinery. There is no

contingent rental arrangement.

As lessor

Gross rental income earned from investment properties of the Group during
the year was approximately HK$9,919,000 (2014: HK$8,508,000). The
related outgoings amounted to HK$588,000 (2014: HK$746,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants, in

respect of rented premises, for the following future minimum lease receipts.

REPBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015412 H31H
38. £ EME (#)
EREBEAN (8)
SEHEXHNAREREETHRAE THK
BEREmROENES KERNEEFHM LT
WRBFTIINF1E25%F 2 iR = Rz Rl
FIESF2H W ARBRABELH -

fERHEA

REFN AEERREMEMRESHAE LKA
#8 18 49 459,919,000/ 7T, (20144 : 8,508,000/
JL) ° A B2 ) A588,000/% 7T (20144 : 746,000
BIT) e

KBS AEEREFREENEETON
B ERERALT

At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014

M2015F12A31H R2014%F12A31H

HK$'000 F&7 HK$000 F/& 1

Within one year 1R 10,849 9,284
In the second to fifth year inclusive EFEEEFEN(EREMEREER) 17,760 25,954
28,609 35,238

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group sold its 70% equity
interests in RWEEIEKIEAR A A to an independent third party, at an
aggregate consideration of RMB18,858,000 (equivalent to HK$23,743,000).
In addition, the Group sold its 100% equity interests in Cadicol Management
Consultants Limited to Mr. HA Kam On, Victor (Executive Director of the

Company), at an aggregate consideration of HK$1,673,000.

REEMUEKE AR A R is engaged in construction and managing of sewage
treatment plant and Cadicol Management Consultants Limited was set up to

hold a corporate club debenture.

30. HEMBE QA

REBZE2014F12A31A L FER AEBAER
B AR #18,858,0007T (1855 5423,743,0007% 7T )
HEHRREMEKBERR R Z70%MKET —
B E =TT AN AREE AR (EL,673,000

7 7T i & H 7 Cadicol Management Consultants

Limited,2 100% &1 F B & £ (KRR E 21T
BE)o
HEMEKEER AR E S KEE R ER

& 2 + ffn Cadicol Management Consultants Limited

REBELEGMEHFMAL -
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The net assets of these disposed subsidiaries and effects on cash flows of

the Group at the respective dates of disposal were as follows:

2015
2015%
HK$'000 F &7

39. LEMBAF (#)
REBHEZHBARNE O LERR L EEF
BERHAEERSREZFEMT -

Cadicol

Management
Consultants RRBKE 2014
Limited BRRA 2014%

HK$000 T/ HK$000 /&L HK$000 Fi&T

Cash consideration RerE = 1,673 23,743 25,416
Analysis of assets and liabilities HEXRERHEZEER
over which control was lost: EEZAN
Bank balances and cash BITERRRS - - 1,843 1,843
Trade and other receivables EEREMERGIE = 195 48,788 48,983
Trade and other payables EEREMENTIE - - (12,465) (12,465)
Net assets disposed of & EEFE = 195 38,166 38,361
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMRB LR EKE:
Consideration RE = 1,673 23,743 25416
Net assets disposed of FritEEESE - (195) (38,166) (38,361)
Fair value of 30% interest retained FHRB30%tER 7 N LB - - 16,204 16,204
Translation reserve released BOE S EE - - 1,435 1,435
- 1,478 3,216 4,694
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERMEENASRAFE:
Cash consideration BeRE = 1,673 23,743 25,416
Less: bank balances and cash B L EMRITESRERS
disposed of - - (1,843) (1,843)
- 1,673 21,900 23,573
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all the eligible
employees of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of both schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.
The retirement benefits cost charged to the profit or loss represents the
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the

rules of the schemes.

Employees of the Group in other jurisdictions currently participate in state-
sponsored pension scheme or defined contribution schemes operated by
the Government of such jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the schemes is to make the

required contributions.

During both years, there was no significant forfeited contribution, which
arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefits schemes, available to

reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions, net of forfeited contributions
of HK$Nil (2014: HK$63,000), amounting to HK$55,862,000 (2014:
HK$50,850,000) have been charged to profit or loss for the year and

included in employee costs as set out in note 9.

41. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES

(a) Related party balances

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties are set out in

the consolidated statement of financial position and in note 27.

REPBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12H31H
40. R KE 58
A5 BR AR B SR IRET BRI SE MBS — TR ERR
ARG 8] ([BEERAEHE)) RRBRBIER
STEGDIRY —ERBIEATES B ([REDE
B THAERERNAEEEERE EmE:
ENEEDBUNAEEEETHERAERE
R R A HIBR AR AR R AR TS A SR BRI 5
EIMELL XA ENENER MR-

AEBEHM R EMEN(EBRIELRZAEME
B & 8 1) B 5OR RAB A 58I sl r B G &l -
AEBAKEEFTNNETE D LERTFHE
EERABAES AEEURSHENE —FHE
RN EEH MR

RRRE S E - FE BR HIR KA I ET 81 o8 W ey
MR A B K - L FRIE T AT A EHDRR RF E #Y
FE R -

B R FE B IR NN 80 R (K48 B &t 814t 5K
& 58FE /55,862,0007 7T, (20144 : 50,850,000
BIT) B EHRUE e EH T HE T (20144
63,0007 70) I B & A K sEOFT # 2 B B A
A e

41. BB RBEEA LTV E

(a) BAREALEVAESRR

AEBE BB A TOBERFITRIINGA
RN EE277
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41. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b) Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with

related parties:

(b) FABEALRS
REEAEEEBHALETTIRS:

41. BB RBAEA LN E (&)

Name of related party Related party relationship Nature of transaction 2015 2014
BHALER B ATNER XGHE 2015F 20145
HK$'000 F %7t HK$000 F% T
ReREKEERAH Associate Sewage expenses 32,245 -
BEAT BREEERA
(c) Connected party transactions (c) BEALRS
Name of connected party Nature of transactions 2015 2014
BEALER XHUE 2015% 20145
HK$'000 F %7 HK$000 F% T
The FM Group (note 1) Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts 211,783 155,037
FMEE (H3H) EEME 4 Gl R R
The AH Group (note ii) Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts 167,163 82,955
AHE B (fi7atii) SEMH 4 SRR
The LFK Group (note iii) Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts 206,186 117,545
LFKEE (7t EEME 4 HE R RE M
Factory Co (note iv) Provision of fabrics knitting services by Factory Co 22,053 26,916
BENA (Wtiv) B PR BN TR
Chinatex Group (notes v and vi) Purchase of yarns, cotton, cooking oil and foodstuffs 19,032 31,053
hEEE (HitvRi) REY RELBARM
Sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items - -
EEME W REUER
Mr HA Kam On Victor (note 39) Disposal of 100% equity interests
in Cadicol Management Consultants Limited - 1,673

ERTEE (H#39) # € 7 Cadicol Management Consultants Limited,Z

100%M: 1
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RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)

The Company and Mr. Feroz Omar (“Mr. Omar”) entered into a master agreement
(the “2015 FM Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed FM Master Sales Agreement
(the “2018 FM Master Sales Agreement”) respectively on 19 April 2013 and 18
November 2015 regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts by
the Group to the FM Group. Mr. Omar is a director and substantial shareholder of a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and hence a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. The FM Group comprises companies which Mr.
Omar and his associates and relatives individually or together exercise or control the
exercise of more than 50% of the voting power at general meetings or control the
composition of a majority of the board of directors. Accordingly, members of the FM
Group are associates of Mr. Omar and hence connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2015 FM Master
Sales Agreement and the 2018 FM Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing

connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2015 FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 September
2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2015
for the 2015 FM Master Sales Agreement are HK$77,000,000, HK$230,000,000 and
HK$230,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated
19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$230,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018 for
the 2018 FM Master Sales Agreement are HK$230,000,000, HK$230,000,000 and
HK$230,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated
18 November 2015.

41.

(c)

it

(0]

REPBEHRME

31 December 2015 2015%12 A31H

BB REEATHIRE (F)

BEALRS (&)

N~ A B Feroz Omardt & ([Omarst & | ) 7A2013%4
A19H %2015 11 A 18H A & B mFME & H &
B8 i R KRB RIRT L 42 3% ([20154FFM
WHEHE ) REEFHFMAHE B ([20185FFM
WIHEWHHE]) - Omart £ RALQAIEFZENE R
RIZEEHFTZRE -REEWRA HAXARZ
BEALT-FMEEZ KB RRBIEHOmart £ K E
HBEALTRRBAIEZS ARNRERNE HERH sk
LR AT SR AT B BUA E YR IRAE - sz
ZERNRNEETFABOKRENAR BAILFMER 2
B R B ROmarft £ 2 BB AL il iRIE E AR R
RARE 2@ AL RiIE EHRRBIFEI4AZ - 2015
FFMAE & ez 2018F FMAR S5 & 135 78 1T .2
RHERARAZIHERELZ S -

2015F FMAR $H & 17 3% 2 HABR A20139F9 A 1A £2015
F12A31H - M2018F FM#AA $5 & 15+ 2 Hi R F32016
F£1H1RE2018%12A31H »

BMENA AT A B A2013F4A198 2 REFE 0 2015
FFMARHE B H2013F9A1H £2013412A31H
IEEAR 948 A ER €58 R AR 20156512431 1E/R
FHRFEENFE FREEED 5IA77,000,0004 7T
230,000,000 7T, 5. 230,000,000 7T ©

ZEBEXISH W ERBARAT A A2013F47198
ZRAEMHEE015FI2AZIB L EEZFELR
230,000,000 7T °

A AR B AB2015F11A18A 2 AEFTE
2018FFMASH & AN B E2018F 12 A31B IE=4F
B B /Y IR & %84 Bl £230,000,0007 7T
230,000,000 7T, 5 230,000,000 T ©
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RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

The Company and Mr. Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramani (“Mr. Hirdaramani”)
entered into a master agreement (the “2015 AH Master Sales Agreement”) and a
renewed AH Master Sales Agreement (the “2018 AH Master Sales Agreement”)
respectively on 19 April 2013 and 18 November 2015 regarding the sales of fabrics,
yarns, fibers and garment parts by the Group to the AH Group. Mr. Hirdaramani
is a director and substantial shareholder of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
The AH Group comprises companies which Mr. Hirdaramani and his associates and
relatives individually or together exercise or control the exercise of more than 50%
of the voting power at general meetings or control the composition of a majority of
the board of directors. Accordingly, members of the AH Group are associates of Mr.
Hirdaramani and hence connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.
The transactions contemplated under the 2015 AH Master Sales Agreement and the
2018 AH Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2015 AH Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 September
2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 AH Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2015
for the 2015 AH Master Sales Agreement are HK$77,000,000, HK$230,000,000 and
HK$230,000,000 as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19 April
2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$230,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018 for
the 2018 AH Master Sales Agreement are HK$150,000,000, HK$150,000,000 and
HK$150,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated
18 November 2015.

41. BB RBAEA LW E (&)

() BEALRS (&)
Wzt (&)

(ii)

KA @ B Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramanist &
(THirdaramani%t & 1) % 201344 A19H K%2015%11
A18A R A ERAHEBE L EMEL - 40 Sk KKK
B BIRT S 481 ([2015F AHAR S E s | ) AL
FHTAHL 85 & 7 ([2018FAHM I E )
Hirdaramanit £ AA R B2 EMBRBIZESF
REZRE BB TR HARARZEEAL
AHE E 2 X 8 2 78 4E i Hirdaramani st 4 & 2B 8
AL ERBRBAIEZERARREAE FEFIH LR
TESRIZERIITE B BIA LR RE  EHZER
RIEZFABOKENAF AILAHEE Z KB R A
A Hirdaramanist 4 2 B8 A £ - iA R IR E TR AA
RRAZBEANTL - RIE LR AIE14AE - 2015F
AHABSHE 153k R2018FAHMR IH &S 1HETE T 1T 2R
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MANAL R HHEIR2013F4 A 198 2 REPIE - 2015
FAHAE I E 1775 h2013F9 A 1H 2013512 A31H
IFERRR94ME A LR © 88 R B ZE20156F 128318 (FF
B ERFEHFE RS EH FIR77,000,000/ 7T

230,000,000 7T }2230,000,000/% 7T °

ZEBEX SV EBBARAR AR A2013F47198
ZRAEMHEE0I5FI2A3IB L EEZFELR
230,000,000/ 7T °

A AR A AB2015F 1118 2 AEFTE
2018F AHARHE HH N E £2018F 12 A31B IE=4F
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RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

The Company and LFK (Holdings) Limited (“LFK") entered into a master agreement
(the “2015 LFK Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed LFK Master Sales
Agreement (the “2018 LFK Master Sales Agreement”) respectively on 19 April 2013
and 18 November 2015 regarding the sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts
by the Group to members of the LFK Group (i.e. LFK and its subsidiaries). Mr. Ha Kam
On, Victor is an executive Director and hence a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. LFK is 100% owned by a discretionary trust whose settlor
and protectors include Mr. Ha's relatives. Accordingly, members of the LFK Group are
associates of Mr. Ha and hence connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2015 LFK Master Sales Agreement
and the 2018 LFK Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected

transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2015 LFK Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 September
2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 LFK Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2015
for the 2015 LFK Master Sales Agreement are HK$124,000,000, HK$372,000,000
and HK$372,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$372,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018 for
the 2018 LFK Master Sales Agreement are HK$300,000,000, HK$340,000,000 and
HK$380,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated
18 November 2015.

REVBEHRME
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RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

The Company and Jiangyin Hui Jian Kuitting Co. Ltd.* CTEEE BT AR A
A]) (“Factory Co”) entered into a master agreement (the “2015 Master Services
Agreement”) and a renewed Master Services Agreement (the “2018 Master Services
Agreement”) respectively on 19 April 2013 and 18 November 2015 regarding the
provision of fabrics knitting services by Factory Co to the Group. Factory Co is owned
as to 51% by the brother of a director of certain subsidiaries in the Group, Factory Co
is an associate of that director and hence a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2015 Master Services
Agreement and the 2018 Master Services Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2015 Master Services Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 September
2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 Master Services Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2015
for the 2015 Master Services Agreement are HK$16,000,000, HK$49,000,000 and
HK$49,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated
19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$49,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018 for
the 2018 Master Services Agreement are HK$27,000,000, HK$21,000,000 and
HK$18,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated
18 November 2015.

The Company and Chinatex Corporation (“Chinatex”) entered into a material purchase
framework agreement (the “2015 Material Purchase Framework Agreement”) and
a renewed Material Purchase Framework Agreement (the “2018 Material Purchase
Framework Agreement”) respectively on 19 December 2012 and 18 November 2015
in relation to the purchase of yarn, cotton, other materials for the manufacture of
fabric, garments, whereas cooking oil and foodstuffs for the provision of meals to the
employees by the Group from the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex and its subsidiaries).
Chinatex is a controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, members of the Chinatex Group
are associates of Chinatex and hence connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2015 Material Purchase
Framework Agreement and the 2018 Material Purchase Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.
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RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

(Continued)

The 2015 Material Purchase Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from
25 January 2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 Material Purchase Framework
Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ended 31 December 2015
for the 2015 Material Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$310,000,000,
HK$411,000,000 and HK$512,000,000 as set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 19 December 2012.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$512,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2012.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018
for the 2018 Material Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$100,000,000,
HK$200,000,000 and HK$300,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 18 November 2015.

The Company and Chinatex entered into a product and service supply framework
agreement (the “Product and Service Supply Framework Agreement”) on 19
December 2012 regarding the supply of textiles products such as fabric and garments
and dyeing service by the Group to the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex and its
subsidiaries) commencing from 25 January 2013 to 31 December 2015.

Chinatex is a controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, members of the Chinatex Group
are associates of Chinatex and hence connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Product and Service Supply
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ended 31 December 2015
for the Product and Service Supply Framework Agreement are HK$150,000,000,
HK$170,000,000 and HK$190,000,000 as set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 19 December 2012.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$190,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2012.

There is no renewal of Product and Service Supply Framework Agreement after its

expiration.
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41. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management

during the year was as follows:

41. BB RBAEA LW E (&)

d) T2EBASOEH
REFEEREMEIEERABOHHET -

2015 2014

2015% 20144F

HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F/& T

Fees e 1,250 1,238
Short-term benefits RHER 3,972 9,428
Post-employment benefits BREER 32 66
Discretionary bonuses RiEEe 1,217 -
Equity-settled share-based payments NEREE RN BEE AR 578 1,043
7,049 11,775

The remunerations of directors and key management are decided by the
board of directors and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

(e) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by enterprises directly or indirectly owned, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (collectively the “state-owned entities”).
The Company’s directors consider that state-owned entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group’s business transactions with them are

concerned.

During the year, the Group had transactions with other state-owned entities
including, but not limited to, the sales of finished goods, purchases of raw

materials/utilities and transactions with state-owned banks.

The sales of finished goods and purchase of raw materials/utilities to
these state-owned entities are individually not significant.

approximately 38% and 42% (31 December 2014: 75% and 59%

In addition,

respectively) of the Group’s bank balances (including short-term bank
deposits and restricted bank deposits) and borrowings are placed/arranged

with state-owned banks as at 31 December 2015.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

BREREHR

Listing : Listed on the Main Board of

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

since 20 April 1988

Stock Code : 420
Board Lot : 2,000

Shares Issued

Financial Calendar 2015

Financial year ended

Interim results announced

Annual results announced

Register of members closed for
determining the right to attend and
vote at Annual General Meeting

Annual general meeting

Register of members closed for
determining the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend

Distribution of dividend

2016 interim results to be announced

Shareholder Services

1,205,026,960

31 December 2015
21 August 2015
18 March 2016
22 — 24 June 2016

24 June 2016
6 -8 July 2016

21 July 2016
End of August 2016

For enquiries about share transfer and registration,

please contact the Company’s share registrar:

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Tel +852 2980 1766

Fax +852 2861 1465

Investor Relations

Ms. Charmaine CHENG

Joint Company Secretary,
Deputy General Manager,

Corporate Governance Department

Block A, 6/F., Eastern Sea Industrial Building

29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung

New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel +852 3478 6267

Email pr@fshl.com
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Global Network | BRERAE4K

FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
BHEX (KE) GRAF

Block A, 6/F, Eastern Sea Industrial Building,
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong

BB HE B HE29-395%
R THEAREAECHE

Tel &5 +852 2485 1881

LCMP
Y

Fountain Set has overseas marketing/representative offices in the following locations. Addresses, phone numbers and fax numbers
are listed at www.fshl.com

BHEXNTIHERBEBINNSHEERBENARE @ it - EFRHREERFHZIAEwww.fshl.comA

Toronto . Ho Chi Minh City R Seoul R Shanghai
2% AR EL b=

Production facilities are set up in the following countries:
RTIIBERZREEER:

China Indonesia Sri Lanka

TE T R HEREE
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